
 

TREASURE ISLAND MOBILITY MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

NOTICE OF MEETING CANCELLATION 
 
 
The following scheduled Committee meeting has been CANCELED: 
 
Virtual Meeting Information 
Tuesday, January 11, 2022 
9:00 a.m.  
 
The agenda packet previously posted and distributed for this cancelled 
meeting appears on the following pages. 
 
For the most up to date meeting schedule, please visit our website at 
www.sfcta.org/events. 
 
If you have any questions please contact the Clerk of the Transportation 
Authority at clerk@sfcta.org or 415-522-4800. 

http://www.sfcta.org/events


Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 

TREASURE ISLAND MOBILITY MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
Committee Meeting Notice 

Date: 

Location: 

Tuesday, January 11, 2022; 9:00 a.m. 

Watch SF Cable Channel 26 

Watch www.sfgovtv.org 

PUBLIC COMMENT CALL-IN: 1 (415) 655-0001; Access Code: 2496 989 7349 # # 

To make public comment on an item, when the item is called, dial ‘*3’ to be added to the queue to 
speak. Do not press *3 again or you will be removed from the queue. When the system says your line is 
unmuted, the live operator will advise that you will be allowed 2 minutes to speak. When your 2 
minutes are up, we will move on to the next caller. Calls will be taken in the order in which they are 
received. 

Commissioners: Haney (Chair), Mandelman (Vice Chair), and Ronen 

Clerk: Britney Milton 

Remote Access to Information and Participation: 

This meeting will be held remotely and will allow for remote public comment pursuant to AB 
361, which amended the Brown Act to include Government Code Section 54953(e) and 
empowers local legislative bodies to convene by teleconferencing technology during a 
proclaimed state of emergency under the State Emergency Services Act so long as certain 
conditions are met. 

Members of the public are encouraged to watch SF Cable Channel 26 or visit the SFGovTV 
website (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings or watch them on demand. Written 
public comment may be submitted prior to the meeting by emailing the Clerk of the 
Transportation Authority at clerk@sfcta.org or sending written comments to Clerk of the 
Transportation Authority, 1455 Market Street, 22nd Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103. Written 
comments received by 8 a.m. on the day of the meeting will be distributed to Committee 
members before the meeting begins. 

1. Roll Call

2. Approve Resolution Making Findings to Allow Teleconferenced Meetings Under
California Government Code Section 54953(e) – ACTION*

Page 

3 

1

http://www.sfgovtv.org/
http://www.sfgovtv.org/
mailto:clerk@sfcta.org


TIMMA Committee Meeting Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 

3. Approve the Minutes of the November 9, 2021 Meeting – ACTION* 

4. Recommend Approval of Base Toll Policy and Affordability Program and Implementation 
of the Associated Toll System – ACTION* 

5. Treasure Island Mobility Management Program Implementation Report 2021 – 
INFORMATION* 

6. Recommend Acceptance of the Audit Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 – 
ACTION* 

7. Internal Accounting Report for the Three Months Ending September 30, 2021 – 
INFORMATION* 

Other Items 

8. Introduction of New Items – INFORMATION 

During this segment of the meeting, Committee members may make comments on 
items not specifically listed above or introduce or request items for future consideration. 

9. Public Comment 

10. Adjournment 

7 
 

11 
 

53 
 

57 
 
 

83 
 

 

*Additional Materials 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

If a quorum of the TIMMA Board is present, it constitutes a Special Meeting of the TIMMA Board. The Clerk of the 
Transportation Authority shall make a note of it in the minutes, and discussion shall be limited to items noticed on 
this agenda. 

The meeting proceedings can be viewed live or on demand after the meeting at www.sfgovtv.org. To know the 
exact cablecast times for weekend viewing, please call SFGovTV at (415) 554-4188 on Friday when the cablecast 
times have been determined. 

To request sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas, or other accommodations, please contact the 
Clerk of the Transportation Authority at (415) 522-4800. Requests made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting 
will help to ensure availability.  

If any materials related to an item on this agenda have been distributed to the TIMMA Committee after distribution 
of the meeting packet, those materials are available for public inspection at the Transportation Authority at 1455 
Market Street, Floor 22, San Francisco, CA 94103, during normal office hours. 

Written public comment may be submitted prior to the meeting by emailing the Clerk of the Transportation 
Authority at clerk@sfcta.org or sending written comments to Clerk of the Transportation Authority, 1455 Market 
Street, 22nd Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103. Written comments received by 8 a.m. on the day of the meeting will 
be distributed to Committee members before the meeting begins. 

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be 
required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign & Governmental Conduct Code Sec. 2.100] to 
register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San 
Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; (415) 252-3100; website: 
www.sfethics.org. 

 

2

mailto:clerk@sfcta.org


TC011122 TIMMA COMMITTEE RESOLUTION NO. 22-02 
 

Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION MAKING FINDINGS TO ALLOW TELECONFERENCED MEETINGS OF THE 

TREASURE ISLAND MOBILITY MANAGEMENT AGENCY COMMITTEE UNDER CALIFORNIA 

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(e) 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 54953(e) empowers local legislative 

bodies to convene by teleconferencing technology during a proclaimed state of emergency 

under the State Emergency Services Act so long as certain conditions are met; and 

WHEREAS, In March, 2020, the Governor of the State of California proclaimed a state 

of emergency in California in connection with the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) 

pandemic, and that state of emergency remains in effect; and  

WHEREAS, In February 25, 2020, the Mayor of the City and County of San Francisco 

(City) declared a local emergency, and on March 6, 2020, the City’s Health Officer declared a 

local health emergency, and both those declarations also remain in effect; and 

WHEREAS, On September 16, 2021, the Governor signed AB 361, a bill that amends 

the Brown Act to allow local legislative bodies to continue to meet by teleconferencing during 

a state of emergency without complying with restrictions in state law that would otherwise 

apply, provided that the legislative bodies make certain findings at least once every 30 days; 

and 

WHEREAS, Federal, State, and local health officials emphasize the critical importance 

of vaccination and consistent mask-wearing to prevent the spread of COVID-19, and the City 

Health Officer has issued at least one order (Health Officer Order No. C19-07y, available 

online at www.sfdph.org/healthorders) and one directive (Health Officer Directive No. 2020-

33i, available online at www.sfdph.org/directives) that continue to recommend measures to 

promote physical distancing and other social distancing measures, such as masking, in certain 

contexts; and 

WHEREAS, The California Department of Industrial Relations Division of Occupational 

Safety and Health has promulgated Section 3205 of Title 8 of the California Code of 

Regulations, which requires most employers in California, including in the City, to train and 

3



TC011122 TIMMA COMMITTEE RESOLUTION NO. 22-02 
 

Page 2 of 4 

instruct employees about measures that can decrease the spread of COVID-19, including 

physical distancing and other social distancing measures; and 

WHEREAS, Without limiting any requirements under applicable federal, state, or local 

pandemic-related rules, orders, or directives, the City’s Department of Public Health, in 

coordination with the City’s Health Officer, has advised that for group gatherings indoors, 

such as meetings of boards and commissions, people can increase safety and greatly reduce 

risks to the health and safety of attendees from COVID-19 by maximizing ventilation, wearing 

well-fitting masks (as required by Health Officer Order No. C19-07y), using physical 

distancing where the vaccination status of attendees is not known, and considering holding 

the meeting remotely if feasible, especially for long meetings, with any attendees with 

unknown vaccination status and where ventilation may not be optimal; and 

WHEREAS, The Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency (TIMMA) Board and the 

TIMMA Committee have met remotely during the COVID-19 pandemic and can continue to 

do so in a manner that allows public participation and transparency while minimizing health 

risks to members, staff, and the public that would be present with in-person meetings while 

this emergency continues; and 

WHEREAS, It is anticipated that the TIMMA Board will make findings to allow 

teleconferenced meetings under California Government Code Section 54953(e) that will 

cover its committees, including the TIMMA Committee, but the TIMMA Board has not yet had 

the opportunity to make such findings; and 

WHEREAS, At its meeting on November 9, 2021, the TIMMA Committee adopted 

findings pursuant to California Government Code Section 54953(e) to allow the TIMMA 

Committee to hold teleconferenced meetings in conformance with AB 361; and 

WHEREAS, It has been more than 30 days since the adoption of such findings by the 

TIMMA Committee, and the TIMMA Committee must accordingly make new findings to allow 

teleconferenced meetings rather than following the provisions in AB 361 allowing the 

reconsideration of findings under California Government Code Section 54953(e) so long as 

4



TC011122 TIMMA COMMITTEE RESOLUTION NO. 22-02 
 

Page 3 of 4 

such reconsideration occurs within 30 days after the initial adoption or the last 

reconsideration of such findings; now, therefore, be it  

RESOLVED, That the TIMMA Committee finds as follows: 

1. As described above, the State of California remains in a state of emergency due to 

the COVID-19 pandemic. At this meeting, the TIMMA Committee has considered the 

circumstances of the state of emergency.    

2. As described above, State and City officials continue to recommend measures to 

promote physical distancing and other social distancing measures, in some settings. 

3. As described above, because of the COVID-19 pandemic, conducting meetings of 

the TIMMA Committee in person would present imminent risks to the safety of 

attendees, and the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of 

members to meet safely in person; and, be it further 

RESOLVED, That for at least the next 30 days, meetings of the TIMMA Committee will 

continue to occur exclusively by teleconferencing technology (and not by any in-person 

meetings or any other meetings with public access to the places where any legislative body 

member is present for the meeting). Such meetings of the TIMMA Committee that occur by 

teleconferencing technology will provide an opportunity for members of the public to 

address this body and will otherwise occur in a manner that protects the statutory and 

constitutional rights of parties and the members of the public attending the meeting via 

teleconferencing. 

 
 
 
 
 

5



[ this page intentionally left blank ]

6



 

DRAFT MINUTES 

TREASURE ISLAND MOBILITY MANAGEMENT AGENCY COMMITTEE 
Tuesday, November 9, 2021 

 

1. Roll Call 

Chair Haney called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. 

Present at Roll Call: Commissioners Haney, Mandelman, and Ronen (3) 

Absent: none (0) 

2. Approve Resolution Making Findings to Allow Teleconferenced Meetings Under California 
Government Code Section 54953(e) – ACTION 

Neal Parish, Wendel Rosen LLP, presented the item. 

There was no public comment. 

Chair Haney moved to approve the teleconferencing resolution, seconded by Commissioner 
Mandelman. 

The item was approved without objection by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Haney, Mandelman, and Ronen (3) 

Absent: (0) 

3. Approve the Minutes of the September 21, 2021 Meeting – ACTION 

There was no public comment. 

Chair Haney moved to approve the minutes, seconded by Commissioner Mandelman. 

The item was approved without objection by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Haney, Mandelman, and Ronen (3) 

Absent: (0) 

4. Ferry Service Planning Updates – INFORMATION 

Yana Waldman, Assistant Deputy Director for Capital Projects, presented the item per the staff 
memorandum. 

Chair Haney asked whether fair discounts were being considered for current residents.  

Rachel Hiatt, Acting Deputy Director for Planning, answered that discounts would be provided 
through transit passes.  

During public comment, Jim Mirowsky asked who would be covering the cost of private ferry. 
Chair Haney asked staff to answer the public comment question. Kevin Griffith of Treasure Island 
Community Development (TICD) clarified that interim ferry service would be 100% subsidized by 
TICD, including the $5 fare, which is in addition to TICD support after the launch of the 

7



 Page 2 of 4 

  

permanent service. Chair Haney said he was pleased to see the start of the ferry service program 
and would be watching closely to ensure it is accessible to everyone, especially residents. He 
asked that staff use it as an opportunity to learn and track how the program progresses. 

5. Transit, Base Toll, and Discount Policy Draft Recommendations – INFORMATION 

Rachel Hiatt, Acting Deputy Director for Planning, presented the item per the staff 
memorandum. 

Chair Haney asked staff to characterize the feedback received regarding the item, how it has 
impacted the current proposal, and what were the ongoing concerns. Ms. Hiatt answered that 
the biggest concern was around affordability, not just for but also low-income visitors to the 
island and low-income workers on the island; and staff had adjusted the program to make 
discounts available to all low-income travelers.  

Chair Haney asked how staff was ensuring that the affordability program was made accessible to 
people who should qualify as low or moderate/middle income. Ms. Hiatt answered that the 
system was being tested as a pilot program in the East Bay by the Bay Area Toll Authority to 
evaluate its usability, and that drivers would have to sign up for a FasTrak account to receive the 
toll discount. She further commented that the threshold for eligibility was deliberately aligned 
with eligibility for programs like below-market rate housing, public utilities CARE program, and 
Muni’s Lifeline program.  

During public comment, Ross Libenson spoke against charging toll for public access to the 
island for non-motorized recreational use and spoke about San Francisco Bay Conservation 
Development Commission permitting.  

A caller echoed the comments of the previous caller and said that charging the public a toll for 
recreational access was inconsistent with the California State Lands Commission settlement, as 
well as a burden for those already paying bridge tolls to get to the island.  

Steve Stallone with Treasure Island Organizing Committee and Treasure Island Wines objected 
to the previously passed subsidy program for businesses, which excluded most Treasure Island 
businesses for qualification.  

Jim Mirowsky with Treasure Island Organizing Committee commented that the information 
about the toll should be presented more clearly, not just one-way fees but also both directions, 
considering this would be the only toll in the Bay Area that charges for traveling in both 
directions.  

William Robinson with San Francisco Board Sailing Association said that charging the public a 
toll for recreational access was inconsistent with the California State Lands Commission 
settlement, that water recreation users needed vehicles to carry equipment to the island during 
peak periods for the most advantageous access time, and his organization provided support to 
underprivileged youth.  

Tom Gansbury asked the agency to waive the toll for water sports users, stating the toll was 
excessive especially since Treasure Island Development Agency (TIDA)n has provided no 
amenities, and that it was not feasible to carry equipment on public transit. 

Chair Haney asked for clarification on the toll fees per the public comment. Ms. Hiatt confirmed 
that the toll would be charged in both directions, which was adopted by the TIMMA Board in 
2016. Chair Haney asked when the toll would go into effect. Ms. Hiatt answered in 2024. 

8



 Page 3 of 4 

  

Chair Haney asked if there was anything being offered to those who conduct recreation activities 
on the island. Ms. Hiatt answered that anyone who made 120% of the area medium income or 
below (majority of Bay Area population) would qualify for the toll discount of 50% or the 
exemption for very low income travelers. 

Chair Haney asked what the process and timeline was to finalize the toll policy.  

Ms. Hiatt answered that staff would bring back the recommendations to the committee 
potentially in December after the outreach event in November.  

Chair Haney asked Ms. Hiatt to clarify the definition of businesses that qualify for the toll subsidy. 

Ms. Hiatt answered that all non-profits and three resident-serving food services were the eligible 
businesses, the restaurants and the market and deli. She stated that staff asked TIDA to consider 
lease costs to employers or workers that don’t qualify for the program. She also emphasized that 
toll discounts would be available for any future traveler.  

Chair Haney asked why some businesses like wineries did not fall under the definition of food 
services.  

Ms. Hiatt answered that it was based on TIDA’s guidance on resident serving businesses on the 
island.  

Chair Haney commented that residents were being served in the longstanding wineries and 
breweries on the island as well and would follow up with staff on why the business were being 
excluded from the toll subsidy benefits and that he was not sure he supported that approach. 

6. Program Cost and Funding Strategy – INFORMATION 

Suany Chough, consulting project manager to TIMMA, presented the item. 

Chair Haney commented that all parties involved – such as TIMMA, the City, the state, would 
have to work together to ensure these projects were financially sustainable.  

During public comment, Jim Mirowsky asked that since there was a shortfall, why not push back 
the implementation of the toll until it makes more sense financially to build that system and 
subsidize the ferry and bus service for the first five years to make it more affordable to everyone 
traveling to and from the island. 

Other Items 

7. Introduction of New Items – INFORMATION 

There were no new items introduced. 

8. Public Comment 

During general public comment, a member with Treasure Island Organizing Committee asked 
what the frequency of the ferry service would be and if day passes would be good for two hours 
to connect with other public transit.  

Steve Stallone with Treasure Island Organizing Committee asked if union crews would be used 
to operate the ferry service.  

Jim Mirowsky with Treasure Island Organizing Committee urged the Committee and TIDA to 
watch and participate in the agency outreach sessions because staff couldn’t answer some of the 
questions the public had about economic impact on the island businesses and community.  

9



 Page 4 of 4 

  

Aleta Dupree commented about offering an electric powered ferry for traveling to and from the 
island, and said that access to the island should be free for residents.  

Chair Haney asked where people could find information about the ferry and timeline. Mr. Griffith 
answered that Treasure Island Community Development (TICD) was still finalizing the schedule 
and would not yet publish details for the next several weeks but could say that the ferry would 
potentially operate with 30 minute increments during peak hours and one to two hour 
increments during non-peak hours and weekends. 

Chair Haney asked if the ferry service was run by a union operator.  

Mr. Griffith confirmed that it would be 100% operated by a union operator.  

9. Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:18 a.m.  

10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 6 

Memorandum 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

DATE: January 6, 2022 

TO:  Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency Committee 

FROM:  Rachel Hiatt – Acting Deputy Director for Planning 

SUBJECT:01/11/22 Committee Meeting: Recommend Approval of Base Toll Policy and Affordability 
Program and Implementation of the Associated Toll System 

RECOMMENDATION ☐ Information  ☒ Action   

• Recommend Approval of Base Toll Policy and Affordability 
Program and Implementation of the Associated Toll System 

SUMMARY 

We have refined travel demand forecasts, in light of the latest developer 
schedule and pandemic related factors, and updated financial analyses 
of Treasure Island Mobility Management Program toll policy options. 
Based on these analyses, the Treasure Island Mobility Management 
Agency (TIMMA) Board’s guidance, and public feedback, we are 
recommending a Base Toll and discount policy for future travelers, as the 
first new housing units on the Islands are being sold. The 
recommendation defines toll hours of operation and the toll base rate 
along with associated transit service and means-based discounts. This 
Base Toll and discount policy will complete the TIMMA mobility 
management and affordability program. The first component of the 
Affordability Program, adopted in 2019, exempts current residents from 
the toll. The second component, adopted in September 2021, provides 
current businesses and workers with mobility subsidies. The TIMMA 
Board also adopted a three-operator transit pass as part of the 
Affordability Program last summer. Together, these affordability policies 
support the approval of the Base Toll and discounts (Toll Rate Schedule). 
The TIMMA Board may periodically adjust the Toll Rate Schedule, 
including the toll level, discount amounts, and eligibility, to respond to 
conditions as warranted, in order to manage congestion, maintain 
financial sustainability, advance equity and affordability objectives, and 
meet non-auto mode share performance goal of 50% or more at peak 
periods. Taken together, the proposed Base Toll and Affordability 
policies are projected to result in $33.1 million in revenue and $17.7 
million in additional program operating costs over a five-year period, 

☐ Fund Allocation 

☐ Fund Programming 

☒ Policy/Legislation 

☐ Plan/Study 

☐ Capital Project 
Oversight/Delivery 

☐ Budget/Finance 
☐ Contract/Agreement 
☐ Other: 
__________________ 

11



Agenda Item 4 

Page 2 of 6 

BACKGROUND 

On April 21, 2011, in a joint session with the San Francisco Planning Commission, the Treasure Island 
Development Authority (TIDA) Board of Directors approved the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island 
Development Project, including a Development Agreement and a Disposition and Development 
Agreement (DDA) with Treasure Island Community Development, as well as the Treasure Island 
Transportation Implementation Plan (TITIP). On June 7, 2011, the San Francisco Board of Supervisors 
approved the same. 

The DDA referenced and outlined the goals, strategies, and implementation plan for a new 
transportation system, infrastructure, and services to support the Development Project, including the 
designation of a transportation management agency to oversee the implementation and management 
of the transportation programs and revenues. On April 1, 2014, the San Francisco Board of Supervisors 
approved a resolution designating the Transportation Authority as the Treasure Island Mobility 
Management Agency (TIMMA). The purpose of TIMMA, as set forth in the Treasure Island 
Transportation Management Act of 2008 (State Assembly Bill 981, Leno), is to implement the TITIP.   

The TITIP calls for a comprehensive, integrated program to manage travel demand on Treasure Island 
as it develops, with the ability for adjustments to be made as warranted to meet the twin goals of 
transit mode shares above 50% and financial sustainability. This innovative approach to mobility 
includes a complementary package of strategies and services including developer subsidy, required 
purchase of transit passes by market-rate residents, parking fees, and a multimodal congestion pricing 
program that applies motorist user fees to support enhanced and new bus, ferry, and shuttle transit, as 
well as bicycle sharing, to reduce the traffic impacts of the project. The TITIP establishes two 
performance goals for the program, specifically that at least half the residential trips on/off are made 
by transit and the program raise the revenues needed to pay for the planned regional transit service 
levels. AB 981 authorizes San Francisco to implement congestion pricing (tolling) on Treasure Island 
for these purposes. The TITIP also allowed for changes in the congestion pricing program to meet 
these goals, including expanded hours of operation, inclusion of additional user groups, and 
adjustment of the toll rate (including discounts/exemptions).  

On July 20, 2016, the TIMMA Board approved the recommendations set forth in the Treasure Island 
Mobility Management Study (Study), a policy and financial analysis of the congestion pricing program. 
The Study refined the assumptions of the TITIP and recommended a subset of toll policies (including 
adjustments to the tolled population to include non-residents and high-occupancy vehicle definition) 

which we are seeking to address through various funding and financing 
strategies. The proposed action also authorizes TIMMA to begin 
implementation of the electronic toll collection system.   

12



Agenda Item 4 

Page 3 of 6 

for the Island based on demand forecasting, financial analysis, and stakeholder input. The Study also 
recommended the development of an Affordability Program. 

On November 21, 2018, the TIMMA Committee recommended approval of the Treasure Island Transit 
Pass, Toll Policy, and Affordability Program. This recommendation encompassed toll policies not 
adopted in 2016, including toll level, hours of operation, and discounts for current and future low-
income households. On December 11, 2018, the TIMMA Board continued the item, pending further 
outreach and analysis of additional policy options. 

On November 19, 2019, the TIMMA Board approved Resolution 20-03, establishing a toll exemption 
for current residents, with implementation details to be proposed and adopted as part of future Toll 
System Business Rules. Financial analysis indicates that a toll exemption for current residents will 
require additional revenues of up to $3 million per year over a 15 to 20-year program buildout period, 
depending on toll rate level. Resolution 20-03 allows for a revision of the policy, pending an evaluation 
into its effectiveness, at the midpoint (4,000th unit) of the Development Project.   

On April 27, 2021, the TIMMA Board approved Resolution 21-05, approving the Treasure Island multi-
operator transit pass study final report and adopting the Treasure Island multi-operator transit pass 
design framework. This study recommends that the pass be available at a discounted price for optional 
purchase by residents of below market-rate units and by eligible Treasure Island workers.    

On September 28, 2021, the TIMMA Board approved Resolution 22-01, establishing a toll affordability 
program for current non-profit organization and food-services businesses and their workers. Financial 
analysis indicates that a toll exemption for current residents will require additional revenues of about 
$3.5 million over a five-year initial program period, depending on toll rate level. Resolution 21-01 
allows for a revision of the policy, pending an evaluation into its effectiveness, at the midpoint (4,000th 
unit) of the Development Project.   

On November 9, 2021, the TIMMA Committee heard draft recommendations for the Base Toll (for all 
future travelers) and consolidated Affordability Program. These recommendations encompass the 
remaining toll policies not adopted in 2016 and 2018, including toll level, hours of operation, and 
discounts for future low-income travelers.      

DISCUSSION 

We are presenting the third in a series of toll policy recommendations to complete the Treasure Island 
congestion pricing program, as the first new units are being sold. Approval of the full toll policy 
program now will also support delivery of the toll system (civil works, tolling equipment, and software 
integration) and implementation of a U.S. Department of Transportation Advanced Traffic and 
Congestion Management Technologies Deployment (ATCMTD) grant we received in 2016. Finally, toll 
policy approval supports our ability to initiate financing strategy work, which will help meet our 
schedule to initiate tolling-funded ferry and transit service in mid-2024.   

Public Feedback 2020-2021. In addition to the outreach conducted throughout 2020 and 2021, we 
held a remote outreach event on November 17, 2021, to disclose the proposed Base Toll and 
Affordability Program. Public and Board feedback received through 2020 and 2021 indicated that the 
Base Toll Policy should consider discounts based on hardships, primarily ability to pay, or household 
income. Feedback also called for more analysis of related policies such as transit service levels, 
funding options, and economic effects.   

13



Agenda Item 4 

Page 4 of 6 

Exemptions. In 2019, the TIMMA Board adopted a policy exempting current residents from the toll. In 
addition, federally owned vehicles are eligible for exemption from the toll in accordance with 15 US 
Code Sections 1005 and 1006.1 Finally, transit, vanpools, and authorized emergency vehicles 
satisfying all conditions specified in California Vehicle Code section 23301.5 are also eligible for 
exemption from the toll.2 As part of the Base Toll Affordability Program, we propose toll exemptions 
for the lowest income travelers (5th quintile).  

Hours of Operation. The proposed tolling hours of operation are based on existing and anticipated 
traffic levels and broad consistency with the San Francisco-Oakland Bay Bridge peak periods. Toll rates 
are proposed to vary across periods as shown in Attachment 1, TIMMA Toll Policy Register: 

• “Peak Tolling Hours” are defined as hours between 5:00 a.m. and 10:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. 
and 7:00 p.m. weekdays.  

• “Off-Peak Tolling Hours” are defined as hours between 10:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. weekdays. 
• “Weekend Hours” are defined as hours between 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. weekends. 
• “No-Toll Hours” are defined as the hours outside of Peak, Off-Peak, and Weekend Tolling 

Hours, wherein TIMMA toll collection is not operating. 

Toll Rate Schedule. Toll rates differ during peak and off-peak periods to influence driving decisions, 
fund transit provision during tolled hours, and effectively manage congestion at peak travel times. The 
Toll Rate Schedule, included in Attachment 1, is set to manage travel demand toward the non-auto 
mode share performance goal of 50% or more at peak periods and to fund accessible, frequent, and 
reliable operations for transit alternatives that are financially sustainable, in combination with other 
committed funding. At $5 per one-way trip, the proposed Base Toll rate is broadly consistent with the 
2011 TITIP, or less than (in the case of off-peak rates and the rate for affordability program travelers), 
the 2011 TITIP. 

The TIMMA Board may periodically adjust the Toll Rate Schedule and Affordability Program policies, 
including discount amounts and eligibility, to manage congestion and demand, maintain financial 
sustainability, to meet equity and affordability goals, and to meet the mode share performance goal of 
50% or more trips by transit/non-automobile mode at peak periods. The TIMMA Board will need to 
manage the tolling system, affordability policy, and transit services (Mobility Management Program) 
toward being self-funded over time. As part of this effort, TIMMA Board may also adjust toll rates 
based on the Consumer Price Index and relevant service and other Program costs. 

Discounts. As part of the TIMMA Affordability Program, moderate- and below-income households will 
be eligible for a toll discount as per the Toll Rate Schedule, included in Table 1 and in Attachment 1. 
This discount policy is consistent with the direction of the Downtown San Francisco Congestion Pricing 
Study. 

Discounts will be as follows: 

• Households earning up to 55% Area Median Income (AMI) shall receive a 100% discount. 
• Households earning between 55% and 120% AMI shall receive a 50% discount. 

 

 
1 http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title15/chapter19&edition=prelim  
2 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&division=11.&title=&
part=&chapter=13.&article=3 

14

http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title15/chapter19&edition=prelim
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&division=11.&title=&part=&chapter=13.&article=3
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&division=11.&title=&part=&chapter=13.&article=3


Agenda Item 4 

Page 5 of 6 

Table 1. TIMMA Toll Operations: Hours and Rates 

PERIOD TIMES 
BASE TOLL    

(1-WAY) 

MODERATE- AND 
LOW-INCOME 
HOUSEHOLDS 

VERY LOW-
INCOME 

HOUSEHOLDS 

Peak Toll 
Weekdays 

5a – 10a 
3p – 7p 

$5.00 $2.50 Free 

Off-Peak Toll 
Weekdays 
10a – 3p 

$2.50 $1.25 
 

Free 

Weekend Toll 
Weekends 

8a – 8p 
$2.50 $1.25 Free 

NO TOLL 

Weekdays 
7p – 5a 

Weekends 
8p – 8a 

Free Free Free 

 

Travel Demand Forecasting.  We have refined travel demand forecasts, in light of the latest developer 
schedule and pandemic related factors, consistent with Plan Bay Area 2050 and ConnectSF, San 
Francisco’s long-range transportation planning program. These forecasts supported Base Toll and 
Affordability Program design and informed updated financial analyses of the Treasure Island Mobility 
Management Program.   

Financial Analysis and Program Funding. The proposed base toll results in $33.1 million in toll 
collections generated during the first five years of the program. These revenues combined with 
developer subsidy, fund the robust transit program for the Islands including ferry service between 
Treasure Island and San Francisco proper, east bay shuttle and bus service, on-Island shuttles and 
other travel demand management and parking programs. Additionally, the affordability policies create 
an additional program cost and net funding need. The revised program financial analysis and funding 
plans are documented in the Treasure Island Mobility Management Program Implementation Report 
(Report), which is agendized as a parallel information item (Agenda Item #5). The toll affordability 
policies are projected to cost approximately $17.7 million over the first five years of operation. When 
combined with other expenditures and program revenues from tolls, developer subsidies, and grants, 
this results in a total overall Program funding gap of approximately $16.6 million over a five-year 
period. We are seeking various grants and funding strategies to address the operating shortfall, 
including exploring public financing, as the program is currently projected to be revenue positive in 
year seven of its operation (at 4500 units).   

Toll System Installation and Operation. The congestion pricing program toll system encompasses five 
electronic tolling facilities to collect and process vehicle tolls. These will be delivered in phases with 
phase 1 comprising three sites and phase 2 comprising two sites as described in the attached CEQA 
Addendum (Attachment 2). The full tolling system will include civil works, toll equipment, and 
communication software. TIMMA will operate and maintain the toll system. In terms of operation, as 
described above, the congestion pricing program and Toll Rate Schedule has been refined over the 
past several years to include proposed changes to the following: hours of tolling operation, toll 
rate/discount schedule, high-occupancy vehicle definition, and user groups. In so doing, TIMMA 
continues to find that these changes will benefit all travelers by managing congestion and expanding 

15



Agenda Item 4 

Page 6 of 6 

transit options, while maintaining traveler affordability. 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The Final Environmental Impact Report for the overall 
Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Development Project was approved by TIDA and certified by the 
San Francisco Board of Supervisors in April 2011. The Base Toll and Discount Policy was considered 
for supplemental environmental review under CEQA. TIMMA prepared a CEQA Addendum to 
evaluate the physical effects of the Project updates on the environment, including transportation 
effects. The CEQA Addendum was reviewed by the San Francisco Planning Department and TIDA staff 
and resulted in no new significant environmental impacts compared with the original project CEQA 
review and clearance in 2011. The CEQA Addendum is provided in Attachment 2.  

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). The capital project to collect toll revenues consisting of 
infrastructure and system integration program (Toll System) received a U.S. Department of 
Transportation ACTMTD grant in 2016. Caltrans provided a Categorical Exclusion determination in 
spring 20213 for implementation of the Toll System. Federal review of the proposed Base Toll Policy 
and Affordability Program, including an assessment of Environmental Justice policy issues, is under 
way to revalidate the Categorical Exemption and will support an eventual tolling agreement between 
the Federal Highway Administration and TIMMA.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Approval of the recommended Base Toll Policy and Affordability Program will enable us to begin 
efforts to implement the policy and begin construction of the Toll System, such as procuring a toll 
system integrator, executing agreements with various agencies, etc. As noted above, if the TIMMA 
Board approves the recommended Base Toll Policy and Affordability Program, it will result in program 
revenues of $33.1 million in toll revenues collected and $17.7 million in operating cost (including toll 
revenues forgone) over a five-year period. The overall TIMM Program faces a five year shortfall of $16.6 
million, but is projected to be revenue positive in its seventh year of operation, and to result in financial 
self-sufficiency in 2036 as the development reaches full buildout. We will incorporate related 
expenditures and funding into future year budgets and will bring procurements, where applicable, to 
the TIMMA Board for approval as part of future agenda items. 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 

Attachment 1 – TIMMA Toll Policy Register 

Attachment 2 – CEQA Addendum 

 
3 Caltrans has delegated authority for NEPA review in California under the Federal Highways 
Administration) 

16



TIMMA 2021 Policy Recommendations 
Updated: 12/30/2021 

 

December 2021       
    Page 1 of 4 
 

Toll Policies 

No. Policy Area Policy Language Rationale Authority/ 
Source 

1 Exemptions Federally owned vehicles are eligible for exemption 
from the toll in accordance with 15 US Code Sections 
1005 and 1006.1 

Extends U.S. Code Title 15, Chapter 19, 
Section 1005 to the TIMMA toll; 
consistent with Bay Bridge and 
regional policies 

Statutory 
Requirement 

Authorized emergency vehicles satisfying all 
conditions specified in California Vehicle Code section 
23301.5 are eligible for exemption from the toll.2 

California Vehicle Code section 
23301.5; consistent with Bay Bridge 
and regional policies 

Statutory 
Requirement 

2 Tolling Hours  Tolls shall be collected during all “Tolling Hours,” as 
defined in this Policy, to manage congestion by 
influencing driving decisions. Tolling hours are 
determined by anticipated traffic levels, and toll rates 
may vary across periods as provided below. Tolling 
hours apply to holidays and tolls shall be collected per 
the policy during holidays. 
 
“Peak Tolling Hours” are defined as hours between 
5:00 a.m. and 10:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. 
weekdays, without exclusions for holidays, during 
which tolls are collected.  
 
“Off-Peak Tolling Hours” are defined as hours 
between 10:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. weekdays, without 
exclusions for holiday, during which tolls are collected. 
 

Treasure Island Mobility Management 
Study (2016) 
 
Treasure Island Mobility Program 
Implementation Report (2021) 
 
Peak periods are broadly consistent 
with Bay Bridge weekday peak/carpool 
hours. 
 

Proposed Policy 

 
1 http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title15/chapter19&edition=prelim  
2 https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&division=11.&title=&part=&chapter=13.&article=3 

17

http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title15/chapter19&edition=prelim
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=VEH&division=11.&title=&part=&chapter=13.&article=3


TIMMA Toll Policy Register 

TIMMA Policy Register v5.5       
    Page 2 of 4 
Updated: 12/30/2021 

Toll Policies 

No. Policy Area Policy Language Rationale Authority/ 
Source 

“Weekend Hours” are defined as hours between 8:00 
a.m. and 8:00 p.m. weekends, during which tolls are 
collected. 
 
“No-Toll Hours” are defined as the hours outside of 
Peak and Off-Peak Tolling Hours, wherein TIMMA toll 
collection is not operating. 

3 Rate Schedule Toll rates vary according to the time of day based on 
traffic levels to influence driving decisions and 
effectively manage congestion at peak travel time. 
The Toll Rate Schedule, included in Attachment A, is 
set to manage mode share performance goals of 50% 
or more at peak periods and to fund accessible, 
frequent, and reliable operations for transit 
alternatives that are financially sustainable, in 
combination with other committed funding.  

Treasure Island Transportation 
Implementation Plan (2011) 
 
Treasure Island Mobility Management 
Study (2016) 
 
Treasure Island Mobility Program 
Implementation Report (2021) 
 
 

Proposed Policy 

The TIMMA Board may periodically adjust the Toll 
Rate Schedule, including discount amounts and 
eligibility, to manage congestion and demand, 
maintain financial sustainability, to meet equity and 
affordability goals, and meet mode share 
performance goals of 50% or more at peak periods.  
 
Toll rates may be adjusted based on the Consumer 
Price Index and relevant service and other program 
costs. 
 
Changes to toll rates will be rounded to the nearest 
quarter. 

TIMMA must have operational 
flexibility to meet goals through toll 
rates. 
 
Rate changes must account for market 
escalation using a reliable metric (CPI).  
 
Rate changes are rounded to the 
nearest quarter for ease of accounting 
and public information.  

Proposed Policy 

18



TIMMA Toll Policy Register 

TIMMA Policy Register v5.5       
    Page 3 of 4 
Updated: 12/30/2021 

 

Affordability Policies 

No. Policy Area Policy Language Rationale Authority/ 
Source 

4 Affordability As part of the TIMMA Transportation Affordability Program, 
moderate- and below-income households will be eligible for a toll 
discount as per the Toll Rate Schedule, included in Attachment A. 
 
Discounts will be as follows: 

• Households earning up to 55% Area Median Income (AMI) 
shall receive a 100% discount. 

• Households earning between 55% and 120% AMI shall 
receive a 50% discount. 

Consistent with the 
direction of the Downtown 
Congestion Pricing Study. 

Proposed 
Policy 
 

 

  

19



TIMMA Toll Policy Register 

TIMMA Policy Register v5.5       
    Page 4 of 4 
Updated: 12/30/2021 

Attachment A: Toll Rates (1-Way) 

 

 

 

TIMMA Toll Operations: Hours & Rates  

Period Times  Base Toll (1-way) 
Moderate- and Low-Income 

Households  
55%<>120% AMI 

Very Low-Income Households  
<55% AMI 

Peak Toll 
Weekdays 
5a – 10a 
3p – 7p  

$5.00 $2.50 Free 

Off-Peak Toll Weekdays 
10a – 3p $2.50 $1.25 Free 

Weekend Toll Weekends 
8a – 8p $2.50 $1.25 Free 

NO TOLL 

Weekdays 
7p – 5a 

 
Weekends 

8p – 8a 

Free Free Free 

20



1 
 

ADDENDUM TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
 

Addendum Date:  Revised November 30, 2021 

Project Title:  Treasure Island Tolling Project  

Project Sponsor:  Treasure Island Mobility Management Authority (TIMMA) 

Project Sponsor Contact:  Rachel Hiatt, Assistant Deputy Director for Planning,  
rachel.hiatt@sfcta.org, (415) 522-4809

Lead Agency:  TIMMA 

Staff Contact:  Eric Cordoba, Deputy Director for Capital Projects,  
eric.cordoba@sfcta.org, (415) 522-4812  

 

Background 
The Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island (Islands) Redevelopment Project EIR (EIR) was certified in April 
2011 and evaluated redevelopment projects that included up to 8,000 residential units, up to 140,000 
square feet (sq. ft.) of new commercial and retail space, up to 100,000 sq. ft. of new office space, hotel 
rooms, 300 acres of parks and public open space, etc. As a result of the planned development and 
projected growth in population, the EIR anticipated significant traffic impacts related to vehicular 
congestion within downtown San Francisco, the Bay Bridge, and Treasure Island. Congestion 
management plans identified in the EIR included plans for expanded bus and ferry service, free on-island 
shuttle service, and transit-only lanes on Treasure Island. A congestion pricing program will administer a 
congestion fee to travel between the Bay Bridge (with existing toll facilities) and the Islands in a private 
auto. Such efforts will discourage auto trips on and off the Islands, especially at peak times, and 
encourage alternative modes of transit. Congestion pricing was anticipated in the 1996 Base Reuse Plan 
and has been an integral part of redeveloping Treasure Island through subsequent planning and 
environmental work.1,2 Congestion pricing continued to be an element of subsequent analysis and plans 
endorsed or approved by the Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) Board and Board of 
Supervisors, with the State legislature authorizing the use of congestion pricing for the Islands in 2008 
(Chapter 317, Stats. of 2008).  

The Final EIR identifies the need for a congestion management plan to address significant traffic impacts 
related to vehicular congestion. To implement the congestion management plan as envisioned in the 
Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment Project Final EIR, specifically the congestion pricing 

 
1 City and County of San Francisco 1996. Naval Station Treasure Island Reuse Plan. July 1996. Available here: 
http://files.mtc.ca.gov/library/BBC/pdf/ACCNO_000079.PDF. Accessed August 11, 2020. 
2 Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) 2019. Congestion Pricing Memorandum- History of Congestion 
Pricing and Development of Treasure Island. May 8, 2019. Available here: 
https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/050819%20Item%207%20-
Congestion%20Pricing%20Workplan%20and%20Outreach%20Approach.pdf. Accessed August 11, 2020. 

21

http://files.mtc.ca.gov/library/BBC/pdf/ACCNO_000079.PDF
https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/050819%20Item%207%20-Congestion%20Pricing%20Workplan%20and%20Outreach%20Approach.pdf
https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/050819%20Item%207%20-Congestion%20Pricing%20Workplan%20and%20Outreach%20Approach.pdf


2 
 

program element, the San Francisco County Transportation Authority (SFCTA), in coordination with the 
Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency (TIMMA), will be installing tolling facilities at several 
locations on Yerba Buena Island. These tolling facilities will administer a congestion fee for accessing the 
Bay Bridge from the Islands and vice versa, thereby encouraging the use of alternative modes of transit. 
The project being analyzed in this Addendum includes installation of the associated tolling hardware and 
implementation of the congestion pricing program. 

TIMMA is the lead agency under CEQA and has prepared this Addendum.  

Project Description 
The Treasure Island Tolling Project (project) includes five toll facilities throughout Yerba Buena Island 
(see Figure 1 for a regional location, and Figures 2 through 11 for tolling and CCTV locations of Appendix 
A, Figures). Each tolling system will be unmanned and located on an overhead gantry spanning one or 
two vehicular travel lanes. Each overhead gantry will be supported by a foundation and include a 
concrete pad for the roadside cabinet. The toll equipment will communicate with an associated 
transponder located within an individual’s vehicle to collect electronic tolls or through license plate 
recognition for vehicles that are not equipped with transponders. Violators will be identified with 
images collected of the vehicle’s license plate. Closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras will be either co-
located with the gantry or located on standalone poles. Electrical wiring and fiber optics will be located 
in separate conduits installed along the entire roadway with evenly spaced pull boxes along Treasure 
Island, Hillcrest, Southgate and Macalla roads. Conduit will be placed as part of surrounding projects 
that will be implemented prior to project construction and is not part of this project.  

The project includes implementation of the congestion pricing program. Congestion pricing was part of 
the defined project in the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment Project Final EIR (Final 
EIR) as part of the Treasure Island Transportation Plan (Transportation Plan). Amounts and hours that 
the fees would be charged would be controlled by TIMMA (identified as Treasure Island Transportation 
Management Agency (TITMA) in the Final EIR). As currently proposed fees would apply to all drivers, 
except current residents, in both directions going on and off the Islands. Nonprofits and neighborhood-
serving food services will receive subsidies to offset the cost of the toll. In addition, TIMMA is proposing 
to implement discounts and exemptions for future moderate- and low-income travelers. 

One of the key attributes of the congestion pricing program as identified in the Final EIR is that TIMMA 
would have the authority to adjust the amounts and duration of charges to respond to changing travel 
behaviors. The State legislature authorized the use of congestion pricing for Treasure Island/Yerba 
Buena Island in 2008 (Chapter 317, Stats. of 2008). 

Tolling Infrastructure 
Toll Location 1 
Toll Location 1 is located on Macalla Road, several hundred feet west of the new westbound I-80/Bay 
Bridge on- and off-ramps. The pole and foundation of the toll gantry will be located on the north side of 
Macalla Road and span 22 feet over up to two lanes of bi-directional traffic in Toll Infrastructure Phase 1 
(Phase 1), and over the north side bicycle path, buffer, and a single travel lane in Toll Infrastructure 
Phase 2 (Phase 2) or the ultimate buildout of the toll facility to read transponders and license plates of 
vehicles traveling in the lane(s) underneath the gantry. In Phase 1, the traffic will be in two bi-directional 
lanes. In Phase 2 or the ultimate build out of the toll facility, there will be only one one-way lane 

22



3 
 

underneath the gantry with traffic going towards the Treasure Island causeway. A paved tolling station, 
15 foot wide and 30 foot long (parallel to the road), will be constructed providing room for the gantry on 
top of a 60-inch diameter foundation, roadside cabinet/controller pad, and vehicular access (parking). 
Due to the steep topography in this area, the paved tolling station will be supported by retaining walls 
on the three non-roadway sides, with wall heights ranging from 2 feet to 25 feet, as depicted in Figure 2. 
The Toll System Integrator (TSI) will install toll related tag readers and license plate capture cameras on 
the gantry on top of each traveled lane. The TSI may also install roadway embedded loop/fiber sensors 
to detect the number of vehicle axles. A CCTV camera for traffic surveillance will be installed on a pole 
extension on top of the toll gantry. The roadside cabinet/controller pad will house the toll system 
cabinet which hosts the tolling controllers.  

Toll Location 2 
Toll Location 2 is also located on Macalla Road, within the inside of the westbound loop on-ramp. The 
pole and foundation of the toll gantry will be located on the north side of Macalla Road and span 33 feet 
over the travel lanes covering two lanes of traffic. The toll gantry will span both lanes to support two toll 
readers as depicted in Figure 3 and Figure 4. The TSI will install toll related tag readers and license plate 
capture cameras on the gantry on top of each traveled lane. A paved tolling station, 15 foot wide and 20 
foot long, will be constructed providing room for the gantry on top of a 60-inch foundation and roadside 
cabinet/controller pad. Parking will be accommodated at the Caltrans substation across Macalla Road. 
Due to the steep topography in this area, the paved tolling station will be support by retaining walls on 
the three non-roadway sides, with wall heights ranging from 2 feet to 25 feet. The TSI may also install 
roadway embedded loop/fiber sensors to detect the number of vehicle axles. A CCTV camera for traffic 
surveillance will be installed on a pole extension on top of the toll gantry. The roadside cabinet will 
house the toll system cabinet that hosts the tolling controllers. 

Toll Location 3 
Toll Location 3 is located on Hillcrest Road within the Southgate Interchange Improvement Project 
limits. The toll equipment will be located on two separate overhead gantries installed on the retaining 
wall between the eastbound I-80 on-ramp and the new eastbound I-80 off-ramp as depicted in Figure 5 
and Figure 6. The on- and off-ramp traveling vehicles are not located at the same elevation. The TSI will 
install toll related tag readers and license plate capture cameras on the gantry on top of each traveled 
lane. The TSI may also install roadway embedded loop/fiber sensors to detect the number of vehicle 
axles. A CCTV camera for traffic surveillance will be installed on a pole extension on top of the toll 
gantry. A roadside cabinet will be installed in the proximity of the toll gantry in the storm water 
treatment area. This will be within the loop of the newly constructed I-80 eastbound off-ramp. At this 
location, a 7 foot by 9 foot controller pad will be constructed for mounting the toll system cabinet that 
hosts the tolling controllers. Parking for maintenance access to the cabinet will be located just inside the 
security fencing of the storm water treatment area. 

Toll Location 4 
Toll Location 4 is located on the WB I-80 on-ramp and is within the West-Side Bridges Project limits. The 
gantry poles and foundations will be located on retaining walls on either side of the transit-only WB I-80 
on-ramp and span over the lane as depicted in Figure 7. The West-Side Bridges Project will implement 
transit-only facilities on the WB I-80 on-ramp to access the Bay Bridge. The TSI will install toll related tag 
readers and license plate capture cameras on the gantry on top of the travel lane. Loop/fiber sensors to 
detect the number of vehicle axles will not be installed at this location due to the proximity of rebar 

23



4 
 

within the roadway structures. A CCTV camera will be installed on a pole extension on top of the toll 
gantry. A 7 foot by 9 foot controller pad will be installed adjacent to a maintenance vehicle pullout 
located alongside the east bound I-80 off-ramp. The controller pad will be constructed for mounting the 
toll system cabinet that hosts the tolling controllers. 

Toll Location 5 
Toll Location 5 is also located on Treasure Island Road. The pole and foundation of the toll gantry will be 
located over the northbound mixed-flow travel lane of Treasure Island Road, several hundred feet south 
of where the road intersects with Macalla Road as depicted in Figure 8. The TSI will install toll related tag 
readers and license plate capture cameras on the gantry on top of each traveled lane. The TSI may also 
install roadway embedded loop/fiber sensors to detect the number of vehicle axles. A CCTV camera will 
be installed on a pole extension on top of the toll gantry. A roadside cabinet will be installed in the 
proximity of the toll gantry, and a 7 foot by 9 foot controller pad will be constructed for mounting the 
toll system cabinet that hosts the tolling controllers. 

Standalone CCTV Camera Locations 
In addition to the toll gantries on Yerba Buena Island for the five tolling locations, there are three 
locations where standalone CCTV cameras will be installed on Yerba Buena Island for traffic monitoring 
(see Figures 9 through 11).  

• CCTV-1 - Camera is located on Macalla Road (west of Toll Location 1) 

• CCTV-2 - Camera is located on the south end of Hillcrest Road (south of Toll Location 3) 

• CCTV-3 - Camera on Treasure Island Road (south of Toll Location 5) 

At each of these locations, a CCTV camera will be installed on poles that are 30 to 45 feet in height (to 
provide adequate coverage). Each one will have a pole mounted cabinet to house network switches, 
fiber patch panels, surge protector, power distribution unit, and camera accessories mounted on top of 
the pole. 

Signage 
The project will place a static information sign on existing sign gantries on the westbound I-80/Bay 
Bridge west span upper deck, and the eastbound I-80 east span to inform vehicles that access to within 
Treasure Island will be tolled. No new sign foundations will be required.  

Power and Data Lines  
Electrical and fiber optic communication lines will be installed within an existing utility joint trench 
encircling Yerba Buena Island within Treasure Island, Hillcrest, Southgate and Macalla roads. 
Additionally, the power and data lines will extend to all toll readers, cameras and associated 
communication equipment and cabinets. The power and data lines will be installed as part of adjacent 
construction projects. 

Construction  
Construction of the tolling infrastructure including substructure (conduits and foundation), pull boxes, 
cabinets and tolling gantries will be performed by the respective contractors for the Southgate 
Interchange Improvements Project and Yerba Buena Island Westside Bridges Project. Construction 
methods will include boring (drilling) using an auger for the five gantry and three CCTV locations. 
Construction activities will occur in two phases, following the schedule of the abovementioned 

24



5 
 

surrounding projects. The first construction phase (Phase 1) includes Toll Locations 1, 2, and 3 and CCTV-
1, and the second construction phase (Phase 2) includes Toll Locations 4 and 5 and CCTV-2 and CCTV-3.  

There will be a slight increase in impervious surface due to the concrete pads for roadside cabinets 
(approximately 108 sq. ft. per toll location), gantry foundations (approximately 20 sq. ft. per gantry), and 
associated pull boxes. Toll Locations 1 and 2 will also have a 450 and 300 sq. ft of pavement for tolling 
stations. Foundations for the gantries and CCTVs would be drilled shafts to minimize excavation and 
ground disturbance, which would also minimize the potential for erosion.  

Toll Locations 1, 2, 3 (eastbound gantry) and all CCTV locations, will require traffic control for 
construction during the daytime, generally from 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM. Flaggers may be used to maintain 
traffic for at least one lane on Macalla Road. For Toll Locations 1 and 2, traffic control will be required 
for most construction activities. Traffic control for Toll Location 3 will be limited to installation of the 
eastbound gantry and for installing equipment on the gantry. No traffic control is required for Toll 
Locations 4 and 5 as construction will occur away from oncoming traffic. Construction duration at each 
tolling location is expected to last approximately 2-4 months with Toll Locations 1 and 2 requiring the 
longest amount of time. 

Subsequent to construction of the tolling infrastructure the San Francisco Department of Technology 
(DT) and the Toll System Integrator (TSI) will require short duration lane closures and traffic control for 
installing fiber cables, power cables, equipment on each gantry and for installing axle counters in the 
roadways. These closures will require up to 2-4 hours each day over a period of two (2) weeks (most 
likely not consecutive weeks) per location. DT will be installing the fiber cables first, followed by the TSI 
completing the Toll System installation. 

The area required for the contractor’s staging will be located in maintained areas of the roadway ROW. 
Construction materials will be stored at offsite contractor yards. No temporary construction easements 
will be required.  

The overall timing for construction of the toll facilities will occur in two phases as follows: 

Toll Infrastructure Phase 1 
• July 2023 – June 2024 

o Toll Location 1 – Macalla Road 
o Toll Location 2 – Macalla Road 
o Toll Location 3 – Southgate Project 
o CCTV-1 – Macalla Road 
o I-80 Signage Updates and Joint Trench 

Toll Infrastructure Phase 2 
• July 2024 – June 2025 (pending Westside Bridges Project schedule) 

o Tolling Location 4 – West Side Bridges Project 
o Tolling Location 5 – Treasure Island Road 
o CCTV-2 – Hillcrest 
o CCTV-3 – Treasure Island Road 

Operation  
The congestion pricing program would be implemented during the first phase of development. TIMMA 
would administer, monitor, and test the program for effectiveness in meeting the Transportation Plan 

25



6 
 

objectives, and would make changes as required to meet program objectives. Sponsors of special events 
will be required to submit a Transportation Demand Management plan designed to meet the event’s 
travel needs without disrupting the travel needs of others.   

Approval Actions  
On April 21, 2011, the Planning Commission of the City and County of San Francisco (City) and the TIDA 
Board of Directors each certified a Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Treasure Island/Yerba 
Buena Island Redevelopment Project. On June 7, 2011 and June 14, 2011, the San Francisco Board of 
Supervisors affirmed the Planning Commission’s certification of the Final EIR and approved the 
redevelopment project, and the City filed a Notice of Determination on June 16, 2011.  

Previously, in July 2010, the City and the TIDA had jointly published the Draft EIR. The certified Final EIR 
incorporated revisions based on, and in response to, public comments, subsequent review by TIDA and 
TICD, and substantial input from the public and City agencies on the Draft EIR. The Final EIR identifies 
the need for a congestion management plan to address significant traffic impacts related to vehicular 
congestion. The congestion management plan will identify construction traffic management best 
practices in San Francisco and will dictate changes to transit lines to be coordinated and approved, as 
appropriate, by SFMTA, AC Transit, and TIMMA. Additionally, the approved design of the roadway 
network on the Islands anticipates impacts of tolling on automobile demand and ramp queueing. The 
Final EIR assumed congestion pricing to be applied to residents during peak periods only. Under the 
California Environmental Quality Act, the project cannot move forward without congestion pricing, 
which is part of the environmentally evaluated and approved project.  

Since certification of the Final EIR, the project has been refined to include five tolling facilities to 
specifically address the congestion pricing program element of the congestion management plan. The 
project has also been refined to include the following changes to the congestion pricing program: hours 
of tolling operation, proposed rate, and user groups. Additionally, discounts and exemptions for current 
residents, current workers and businesses, and future low-income residents have been included.  

The remainder of this document evaluates the potential for these changes to result in environmental 
impacts not previously addressed in the Final EIR.  

Proposed Refinement 
As identified in the Final EIR, the congestion management plan will create a construction and 
implementation plan to alleviate traffic congestion on the Islands. Congestion pricing was part of the 
defined project in the Final EIR (as a Transportation Demand Management measure in the 
Transportation Plan) and will be administered by TIMMA.  
Tolling Location Refinements 
Since certification of the Final EIR, the project has been refined to include five tolling locations located 
around Yerba Buena Island to alleviate congested traffic flow during peak driving hours. Two tolling 
locations will be installed on the east side of Yerba Buena Island (on Macalla Road), and three tolling 
locations will be installed on the west side of the Yerba Buena Island (on Hillcrest Road and Treasure 
Island Road).  
 

26



7 
 

Congestion Pricing Refinements 
The Final EIR described a congestion pricing program that would allow for imposition of fees applicable 
to residents who drive on and/or off the Islands during peak travel periods. Since certification of the 
Final EIR, the details for congestion pricing have been refined.  

Prior to the Final EIR certification in 2011, the Treasure Island Transportation Management Act of 2008 
(AB 981) was approved by the California state legislature which authorized the Board of Supervisors of 
the City to designate a board or agency to act as the Islands-specific transportation management 
agency, which is referred to in AB 981 as TITMA (now TIMMA).3 The purpose of the TIMMA is to 
implement a comprehensive and integrated program to manage travel demand on the Islands as 
development of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Development Project occurs. AB 981 granted 
the transportation management agency the power to recommend congestion pricing tolls; to adopt on-
street and off-street parking fees, fines, and penalties; and other parking-related revenues and a transit 
pass fee structure for the Islands.4 Per Section 1967.3 of AB 981, “the board of supervisors directed that 
the transportation program ensure adequate and reliable funding for transit service for Treasure Island, 
including bus transit service provided by the city’s municipal transportation agency.”  

AB 981 also states that congestion pricing fees can be applicable to both residents and other motorists 
and allows flexibility in the setting of congestion pricing rates. Section 1967.3 of AB981 states: “…the 
transportation management agency shall have the exclusive power to do any or all of the following 
pursuant to the terms of a resolution or ordinance adopted by the board of supervisors:  

(a) Adopt and administer the transportation program and implementing rules and regulations. 

(b) Recommend to the board of supervisors and the transportation authority an initial fee 
structure for the imposition of congestion pricing fees applicable to residents and other motorists 
as they enter or exit Treasure Island in the amount deemed necessary and proper by the 
transportation management agency to implement the transportation program. 

(c) Adopt amendments to the congestion pricing fee structure initially adopted by the board of 
supervisors and the transportation authority pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 1967.5, as the 
transportation management agency deems necessary and appropriate from time to time to 
implement the transportation program, based upon a finding that the amendments to the fee 
have a relationship or benefit to the motor vehicle drivers who are paying the fee. […] 

(k) Undertake studies, performance evaluations, and other mechanisms as it deems necessary 
and proper to adopt and amend the transportation program with the purpose of relieving 
transportation-related impacts.” 

Subsequent to the Final EIR certification, TIMMA conducted a Treasure Island Mobility Management 
Study in 2016 that analyzed and recommended policies for the congestion pricing component of the 
Transportation Plan. The study recommended that tolling be applied to both residents and non-
residents, as financial modeling indicated that a resident-only toll will not raise sufficient revenue to 

 
3 Note that while AB 981 identifies the TITMA as the Treasure Island-specific transportation management agency, 
SFCTA and TIDA staff have elected to utilize a different name – Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
(TIMMA); however, the roles and responsibilities have not in any way been altered. 
 

27



8 
 

meet the operations and maintenance cost recovery target for the transportation program. A toll 
applied to residents-only (as specified in the Final EIR) was also found to be more costly to enforce and 
administer. Secondly, the 2016 study recommended the expansion of tolling operation hours to include 
non-peak periods, as financial modeling indicated that a toll during weekday peak periods only will not 
raise sufficient revenue to implement the transportation program.  

Based on the provisions of AB 981, including the requirement to undertake studies and performance 
evaluations to adopt and amend the congestion pricing fee structure, the congestion pricing has been 
refined since the Final EIR to apply to all drivers, except current residents, in both directions going on 
and/or off the Islands, seven days a week. Nonprofits and neighborhood-serving food services will 
receive subsidies to offset the cost of the toll. In addition, TIMMA is proposing to implement discounts 
and exemptions for future moderate- and low-income travelers. These refinements are also based on  
years of feedback received during community outreach conducted with the Island’s residents, business 
owners and employees, and non-profit staff and members. Members of the community have played a 
key role in informing the Transportation Plan through the feedback they have provided during the 
planning process. Since 2016, there have been more than 50 opportunities for members of the public to 
learn about the project and provide feedback, including TIDA Board and Community Advisory 
Committee meetings, multilingual community open houses, focus groups, and co-creation workshops, 
one-on-one conversations with business owners and non-profit representatives, and multilingual 
surveys. Outreach opportunities were refined over time to be more accessible and useful to 
participants, including when and where meetings were held, and the type of information shared.  

In response to feedback gathered from the community, the following details for the congestion pricing 
program have been refined since certification of the Final EIR:  

• Fees would apply to all drivers, except for current residents 
• Tolling would apply seven days a week 
• Proposed rate 
• Discounts and exemptions for current residents, workers, and businesses, as well as future low 

income residents 

Further discussion of the outreach conducted to inform the Transportation Plan is available in Appendix 
B, Treasure Island Transportation Plan Outreach Summary of this addendum.   

With the proposed refinement, the congestion management plan will be effective in reducing traffic 
congestion identified in the Final EIR.  

Analysis of Potential Environmental Effects of Project Modification 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15164 provides for the use of an addendum to document the basis of a lead 
agency’s decision to not require a subsequent or supplemental EIR for a project that is already 
adequately covered in an existing, certified EIR, when project changes are proposed. The lead agency’s 
decision to use an addendum must be supported by substantial evidence that the conditions that would 
trigger the preparation of a Subsequent EIR, as a provided in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, are not 
present.  

This addendum provides analysis to understand whether the refined project would result in any new 
significant environmental impacts, substantial increase in the severity of previously identified effects, or 

28



9 
 

necessitate implementation of additional or considerably different mitigation measures than those 
identified in the Final EIR.  

Environmental Topics Not Requiring Analysis  
There will be a slight increase in impervious surface due to the concrete pads for roadside cabinets 
(approximately 108 sq. ft. per toll location), gantry foundations (approximately 20 sq. ft. per gantry), and 
associated pull boxes. Foundations for the gantries and CCTVs would be drilled shafts to minimize 
excavation and ground disturbance, which would also minimize the potential for erosion. The area 
required for the contractor’s staging will be located in maintained areas of the roadway ROW. 
Construction materials will be stored at offsite contractor yards. No temporary construction easements 
will be required.  

Because the project changes would be limited to minor physical and operational changes described 
herein, and would occur within the existing street right-of-way, and the intensity and duration of overall 
construction activities are anticipated to remain unchanged, the project changes could not result in new 
significant or substantially more severe impacts to the following topics: 

• Land Use/Planning 
• Population/Housing 
• Utilities/ Service Systems 
• Geology/Soils 
• Hazards and Hazardous Materials 
• Hydrology and Water Quality 

• Energy 
• Public Services and Recreation 
• Mineral Resources 
• Agriculture/Forest Resources 
• Tribal Cultural Resources 

The refined project includes installation and operation of tolling hardware to facilitate a long-planned 
congestion pricing program designed to reduce traffic and encourage the use of multimodal 
transportation on the Islands. By charging a price for road use, congestion pricing can encourage road 
users to take transit, walk, bike, carpool, or telework rather than driving alone during peak periods. The 
Final EIR identified that a decrease in vehicular trips associated with the congestion pricing fee would be 
met with a corresponding increase in High-Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) 3+, bus and ferry trips. When 
paired with expanded transit service, the rate of increase in vehicle miles traveled (VMT) would be less 
than the rate of increase in population from full buildout of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island 
Redevelopment Project. Accordingly, benefits of the congestion pricing program include reduced 
congestion, which in turn results in reduced automobile emissions, reduced fuel consumption, and 
improved air quality. In addition, the reduction in traffic results in reduced noise levels. 

A “substantial adverse change in physical conditions" is the fundamental definition of a significant 
impact under CEQA.  The congestion pricing program was originally included to address impacts of 
increased traffic congestion and promote use of alternative modes of transportation.  These are 
considered beneficial effects under CEQA.  Refinements to the congestion pricing program, including 
user group, tolling hours, proposed fee, discounts, and exemptions, would not change the purpose, 
intent or environmental effects of the congestion pricing program.  Reduction in congestion and 
resulting benefits to air quality and local noise reduction would still occur.  The changes to the 
congestion pricing program are being done to ensure equity and to address economic concerns of 
existing residents, employees, and businesses on the Island.        

29



10 
 

Air Quality 
The Final EIR concluded that construction of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment 
Project could potentially violate air quality standards and expose sensitive receptors to toxic air 
contaminants and that mitigation measures will be necessary to avoid air quality impacts.  

The Final EIR provides the following mitigation measures to reduce air quality impacts including 
Mitigation Measures M-AQ-1, M-AQ-2, M-AQ-3, and M-AQ-4 which directly address construction of the 
project. The following mitigation measures will apply to construction of the tolling facilities.  

• Mitigation Measure M-AQ-1 : BAAQMD-identified construction mitigation measures shall be 
incorporated into the required Construction Dust Control Plan.   

• Mitigation Measure M-AQ-2: TIDA shall require project sponsors to implement combustion 
emission reduction measures during construction activities. 

• Mitigation Measure M-AQ-3: At the submission of any Major Phase application, TIDA shall 
require that an Air Quality consultant review the proposed development in that Major Phase 
along with existing uses and uses approved in prior Major Phases to determine whether the 
actual project phasing deviates materially from the representative phasing plan. 

• Mitigation Measure M-AQ-4: TIDA shall require the project sponsors to implement additional 
construction mitigation measures recommended for projects with construction emissions above 
thresholds.  

Construction methods to install the five tolling facilities on Yerba Buena Island include boring (drilling) 
using an auger for the five gantry and three CCTV locations. Construction activities for the tolling 
facilities would be minimal in comparison to the construction disturbance of the Treasure Island/Yerba 
Buena Island Redevelopment Project evaluated in the Final EIR. The proposed project will not result in 
any new significant adverse impacts related to air quality beyond those identified in the Final EIR, nor 
would it substantially increase the severity of the significant and unavoidable impact determination 
under CEQA. 

The changes proposed to the congestion pricing plan would reduce congestion through implementation 
of the congestion pricing program and would provide air quality benefits through a reduction in VMT, 
automobile emissions, and fuel consumption as explained above.  

Aesthetics/ Visual  
The Final EIR concluded that the development under the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island 
Redevelopment Project will adversely alter scenic vistas of San Francisco and San Francisco Bay from 
public vantage points along the eastern shoreline of San Francisco, Telegraph Hill, the East Bay 
shoreline, and from the Bay Bridge east span, with no feasible mitigation measure available. The 
proposed project will not result in any new significant adverse impacts to scenic vistas beyond those 
identified in the Final EIR, nor would it substantially increase the severity of the significant and 
unavoidable impact determination under CEQA.  

The project will install five tolling facilities at several locations on Yerba Buena Island. Traffic control for 
construction during the daytime for Toll Locations 1, 2, 3 (eastbound gantry) and all CCTV locations will 
be temporary and with durations approximately lasting 2-4 months. Each tolling gantry will be 
approximately 21 feet in height and will have an average width of 33 feet. With implementation of the 
Redevelopment Project, several buildings will be constructed that are taller than existing buildings on 

30



11 
 

Treasure Island. On Yerba Buena Island, tolling gantries will be comparable in size to existing signages 
for the Bay Bridge and light fixtures installed along roadways. Per TIDA’s Treasure Island and Yerba 
Buena Island Streetscape Master Plan5, the tallest light fixtures specified in the plan are 28.5 feet. The 
lighting on the gantries will be limited (in area, intensity, and duration) to the extent feasible while 
maintain system performance, with the lighting focused on the area of interest (vehicles) and not 
directed to the Bay or the sky.  

Since the exit ramp off the Bay Bridge onto Macalla Road on Yerba Buena Island travels through a 
residential area, the light poles located there are not as tall and are between 16-22 feet tall. The average 
height of the gantries is therefore similar to existing and planned light fixtures. Although the CCTV poles 
will be higher, these will be placed on single poles and not on gantries spanning over the roadway. The 
CCTV poles will be placed on the inside of the roadway and will therefore not obstruct views of the Bay 
for travelers on the roadway. Additionally, installation of the tolling facilities will require minimal 
removal of trees and vegetation. However, these changes will be negligible due to their minimal 
footprint in comparison to the construction disturbance of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island 
Redevelopment Project evaluated in the Final EIR.   

The toll gantries design will be consistent with the future visual character and quality of Yerba Buena 
Island. In addition, tolling facilities will be subject to adhering to TIDA’s Design for Development, a 
regulatory document that establishes design standards and guidelines that directs future development 
of the project area. The project would not change the original significant determination under CEQA. 
Therefore, there will be no additional impacts to the aesthetic and visual quality of Yerba Buena Island 
from implementation of the tolling facilities.   

The changes proposed to the congestion pricing plan would not result in any physical change to the 
environment and therefore would not affect visual resources or aesthetics. 

Biological Element  
The Final EIR concluded that construction of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment 
Project could potentially disturb the biological community surrounding the project site, and mitigation 
measures will be necessary to avoid disturbance to species. 

The following biological mitigation measures Mitigation Measures M-BI-1a, M-BI-1b, M-BI-1c, and M-
BI-1d were outlined in the Final EIR and will be carried out for construction of the tolling facilities. 

• Mitigation Measure M-BI-1a: A qualified botanist shall conduct presence/absence surveys for 
special-status plants prior to any ground disturbance work.  

• Mitigation Measure M-BI-1b: A qualified biologist shall conduct a pre-project survey for nesting 
birds between February 1st and August 15th. 

• Mitigation Measure M-BI-1c: Removal of trees or demolition of buildings showing evidence of 
bat activity shall occur during the period least likely to impact the bats. 

 
5 TIDA 2015. Treasure Island and Yerba Buena Island Streetscape Master Plan. Chapter D – Yerba Buena Island 
Streetscape Designs. Approved February 2, 2015. Available here: 
https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/150202-
Treasure%20Island%20Streetscape%20MP%20Final%20for%20ApprovalPg219-Final.pdf. Accessed July 13, 2020.  

31

https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/150202-Treasure%20Island%20Streetscape%20MP%20Final%20for%20ApprovalPg219-Final.pdf
https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/150202-Treasure%20Island%20Streetscape%20MP%20Final%20for%20ApprovalPg219-Final.pdf


12 
 

• Mitigation Measure M-BI-1d: The project will enforce control of domestic animals and 
discourage the feeding of feral animals to protect native species on the island.  

While the project will occur within the existing and planned roadways, the project will require ground 
disturbance which may be in close proximity to biologically sensitive resources. 

A qualified plant ecologist evaluated all ground disturbance areas for the Treasure Island Toll Hardware 
Project for special status plant species on June 9, 2020. Suitable habitat for special status plants was not 
present at any of the project’s ground disturbance areas and all CNPS listed species are considered to be 
absent. No additional actions are required for special status plant species.  

If an American peregrine falcon nest is present on the Bay Bridge within 300 ft of the Toll Gantry 4 
project location, construction disturbance during the breeding season (February 1 through August 31) 
could result in the incidental loss of eggs or nestlings, by indirectly causing the abandonment of nests. 
Mitigation Measure M-BI-1b from the Final EIR will be implemented to ensure that project activities 
comply with the MBTA and California Fish and Game Code, and avoids substantial impacts to American 
peregrine falcon. 

Due to the abundance of potential roost sites for non-special-status bats in the project vicinity, the 
physical loss of the roost site itself would not substantially affect these species’ populations. Although 
the loss of a small colony of non-special-status bats would not result in a substantial effect on regional 
populations because of the regional abundance of these species, injury or mortality of individuals in 
multiple colonies, or in a particularly large colony, of non-special-status bats may substantially impact 
regional populations. Therefore, implementation of Mitigation Measure M-BI-1c will avoid injury or 
mortality of non-special-status bats as a result of the project. 

The toll gantries and CCTV installations proposed as part of the project do not include buildings or 
residents, so much of Mitigation Measure M-BI-4a does not apply to the project. However, the toll 
gantries and CCTV may meet the definition of a monopole as discussed in the mitigation measure. The 
qualified ornithologist for the project has assessed preliminary designs for the toll gantries and CCTV 
installations and has confirmed that these features do not include guy wires and are therefore 
consistent with the measure. The lighting on the gantries will be limited (in area, intensity, and duration) 
to the extent feasible while maintain system performance, with the lighting focused on the area of 
interest (vehicles) and not directed to the Bay or the sky. This report constitutes the required 
documentation of biologist review required by Mitigation Measure M-BI-4a. No further action is 
required for this impact. 

The refined project is expected to have no effect on biological resources, and would implement the 
avoidance measures described above to reduce impacts under NEPA so that no substantial impacts to 
biological resources will occur. Thus, the project will not have a cumulatively considerable contribution 
to biological resources.  

The changes proposed to the congestion pricing plan would not result in any physical change to the 
environment and therefore would not affect biological resources. 

32



13 
 

Cultural Resources  
The Final EIR concluded that construction of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment 
Project could disturb significant archaeological and paleontological resources within the project site, due 
to ground disturbance.  

The Final EIR provides the following mitigation measure Mitigation Measure M-CP-1, which directly 
addresses construction of the project to reduce impacts on cultural resources. The following mitigation 
measure will apply to construction of the tolling facilities.  

• Measure M-CP-1: The project sponsors shall retain a qualified archaeological consultant to 
prepare and submit a plan for pre-construction archaeological testing, construction monitoring, 
and data recovery, for approval by the San Francisco Environmental Review Officer (ERO). If 
based on the archaeological testing program the archaeological consultant finds that significant 
archaeological resources may be present, the ERO, in consultation with the archaeological 
consultant, shall determine if additional measures are warranted. Additional measures that may 
be undertaken include additional archaeological testing, archaeological monitoring, and/or an 
archaeological data recovery program. If the ERO determines that a significant archaeological 
resource is present and that the resource could be adversely affected by the proposed project, 
at the discretion of the project sponsors, either: 

(a) The proposed project shall be re-designed so as to avoid any adverse effect on the 
significant archaeological resource; or 

(b) A data recovery program shall be implemented, unless the ERO determines that the 
archaeological resource is of greater interpretive than research significance and that 
interpretive use of the resource is feasible, in which case interpretive reuse shall be 
required. 

Ground disturbance during construction of the tolling facilities will be minimal and will not add 
substantial impact beyond those identified in the Final EIR. The closest known historic architectural 
resource identified in the Final EIR is Naval Quarters 10, located 0.03 mile west of the project. Naval 
Quarters 10 and its associated carport, Building 267, were successfully relocated to Clipper Cove as part 
of the surrounding Yerba Buena East Side Ramps Project in January 2015. Therefore, there will not be 
any impacts to this cultural resource due to project implementation.  

The refined project will also implement the Mitigation Measures M-CP-1 as described in the Final EIR. 
Mitigation Measures M-CP-1 will mitigate potential impacts to cultural and paleontological resources 
encompassing the project site, if extensive ground disturbance activities will occur. The project will not 
directly, nor appear to indirectly affect these resources due to limited ground disturbance during 
construction. No ground disturbance will occur during operation of the installed hardware. Additionally, 
the project will take place within areas previously disturbed, especially since power and data lines will 
be installed as part of adjacent construction projects. The project will not cause any new significant 
impacts to cultural resources nor does it require any new mitigation measures beyond what is described 
in the Final EIR.   

The changes proposed to the congestion pricing plan would not result in any physical change to the 
environment and therefore would not affect cultural resources. 

33



14 
 

Noise 
The Final EIR concluded that construction of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment 
Project could result in noise impacts due to the anticipated 20 year duration of construction activities.  

The Final EIR provides the following mitigation measures to reduce impacts related to noise including 
Mitigation Measures M-NO-1a and M-NO-1b,  which directly address construction of the project. The 
following mitigation measures will apply to construction of the tolling facilities.  

• Measure M-NO-1a: Noise reduction measures for construction activities shall be incorporated 
into the construction contract agreement documents to be implemented by the construction 
contractor.  

• Measure M-NO-1b: The project sponsors and developers of each structure (project applicant) 
shall require the construction contractor to use noise-reducing pile driving techniques if nearby 
structures are subject to pile driving noise and vibration. 

Foundations for the gantries and CCTVs would be drilled shafts to minimize excavation and ground 
disturbance. Construction activities for the tolling facilities would be minimal in comparison to the 
construction disturbance of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment Project evaluated in 
the Final EIR. The proposed project will not result in any new significant adverse impacts related to noise 
beyond those identified in the Final EIR, nor would it substantially increase the severity of the significant 
and unavoidable impact determination under CEQA. 

The changes proposed to the congestion pricing plan would reduce traffic through implementation of 
the congestion pricing program which would provide the benefit of reduced noise levels.   

Transportation 
The Final EIR concluded that construction of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment 
Project could potentially result in significant impacts on the transportation and circulation network, and 
mitigation measures will be necessary to anticipate and minimize transportation impacts.  

The following transportation mitigation measure Mitigation Measure M-TR-1 was outlined in the Final 
EIR and will be carried out for construction of the tolling facilities. 

• Mitigation Measure M-TR-1: The project sponsors shall develop and implement a Construction 
Traffic Management Plan designed to anticipate and minimize transportation impacts of various 
construction activities associated with the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment 
Project.  
The Plan shall disseminate appropriate information to contractors and affected agencies with 
respect to coordinating construction activities to minimize overall disruptions and ensure that 
overall circulation on the Islands is maintained to the extent possible, with particular focus on 
ensuring pedestrian, transit, and bicycle connectivity and access to the San Francisco Bay and to 
recreational uses to the extent feasible. 

Construction of the tolling infrastructure will occur in two phases and expected to last approximately 2-4 
months for each tolling location. For Toll Locations 1 and 2, traffic control will be required for most 
construction activities. Traffic control for Toll Location 3 will be limited to installation of the eastbound 
gantry and for installing equipment on the gantry. No traffic control is required for Toll Locations 4 and 5 
as construction will occur away from oncoming traffic. Lane closures and traffic control for a short 

34



15 
 

duration (up to 2-4 hours each day over a period of 2 weeks) would be required for installing fiber 
cables, power cables, equipment on each gantry and for installing axle counters in the roadways. 

The refined project will implement Mitigation Measure M-TR-1 as described in the Final EIR. Mitigation 
Measures M-TR-1 will help reduce construction-related traffic impacts during installation of the tolling 
facilities. The proposed project will not result in any new significant adverse impacts related to 
transportation beyond those identified in the Final EIR, nor would it substantially increase the severity of 
the significant and unavoidable impact determination under CEQA. 

Changes proposed to the congestion pricing plan would provide reduced congestion benefits by 
encouraging use of multi-modal transportation and reducing the need for private vehicle use. As stated 
in the Final EIR, a decrease in vehicular trips associated with the congestion pricing fee would be met 
with a corresponding increase in High-Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) 3+, bus and ferry trips. Congestion 
pricing fees would be applied to support enhanced and new bus, ferry, and shuttle transit, as well as 
bicycle sharing, to reduce the traffic impacts of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment 
Project.    

Public Access 
The Final EIR concluded that construction of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment 
Project would not include development that would be inconsistent with San Francisco Bay Plan 
recreation and public access policies, and as such, no mitigation is required. To further ensure that 
public access to the San Francisco Bay and to shoreline recreational uses would be maintained to the 
extent feasible during construction of the project, Mitigation Measure M-TR-1 would be implemented.  

The following transportation mitigation measure Mitigation Measure M-TR-1 was outlined in the Final 
EIR and will be carried out for construction of the tolling facilities. 

• Mitigation Measure M-TR-1: The project sponsors shall develop and implement a Construction 
Traffic Management Plan designed to anticipate and minimize transportation impacts of various 
construction activities associated with the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment 
Project. 
The Plan shall disseminate appropriate information to contractors and affected agencies with 
respect to coordinating construction activities to minimize overall disruptions and ensure that 
overall circulation on the Islands is maintained to the extent possible, with particular focus on 
ensuring pedestrian, transit, and bicycle connectivity and access to the Bay and to recreational 
uses to the extent feasible. 

Tolling locations would be along existing roads and would not restrict public access to the shoreline. For 
a description of lane closures and traffic control, see Transportation above. The refined project will 
implement Mitigation Measure M-TR-1 as described in the Final EIR. The proposed project will not 
result in any new significant adverse impacts related to public access. 

Changes proposed to the congestion pricing plan would not adversely affect public access. AB 981 which 
authorized the implementation of a comprehensive and integrated program to manage travel demand 
on the Islands, including congestion pricing, notes that the transportation program shall ensure that 
public access to waterfront, recreational, and open-space areas on Treasure Island is sufficient to 
support public trust activities. AB 981 notes that public access to areas subject to the public trust is 

35



16 
 

facilitated in part by transportation program elements, such as (1) an on-island shuttle, (2) secure 
bicycle parking, and (3) limitations on long-term parking on streets that are subject to the public trust 
that will discourage residential use of public trust streets for parking but allow appropriate time for 
recreational and visitor activities. These transportation program elements are funded and implemented 
through revenues generated by the congestion pricing program. As such the refined congestion pricing 
plan which would be applied to support enhanced and new bus, ferry, and shuttle transit, as well as 
bicycle sharing would not adversely affect public access on the Islands.     

Conclusion 
Based on the analysis above, which compares the potential effects of the project with the potential 
environmental impacts as discussed in the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment Project 
Final EIR, the project will not require revisions of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island 
Redevelopment Project Final EIR due to: 

 No Substantial Project Changes: There are no substantial changes proposed in the project which 
will require major revisions of the previous EIR due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant 
effects (State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162(a)(1)). 

 No Substantial Changes in Circumstances: In addition, no substantial changes have occurred with 
respect to the circumstances under which the project would be undertaken which would require 
major revisions of the Final EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects (State CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15162(a)(2)).  

 No Substantial New Information: Finally, no new information of substantial importance has been 
presented which would shows any of the following: 
a) The project would have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR,  
b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in the 

previous EIR,  
c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible 

and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but the project 
proponents declined to adopt the mitigation measure or alternatives; or 

d) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the 
previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but 
the project proponents declined to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative (State CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15162(a)(3)).  

Therefore, none of the conditions described in Section 15162 of the State CEQA Guidelines requiring 
preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. The project as revised, and as described in this 
addendum, does not create any of the conditions described in Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines 
that call for the preparation of a subsequent EIR. 

Thus, an addendum to the adopted EIR is the appropriate environmental documentation to analyze the 
potential environmental impacts that would result from the refinement to the project description. 

36



17 
 

References  
City and County of San Francisco 1996. Naval Station Treasure Island Reuse Plan. July 1996. Available 
here: http://files.mtc.ca.gov/library/BBC/pdf/ACCNO_000079.PDF. Accessed August 11, 2020. 

City and County of San Francisco 2020. Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island Redevelopment Project. Final 
Environmental Impact Report. Certified April 21, 2011. Available here: 
https://sftreasureisland.org/FinalEIR. Accessed June 1, 2020.  

Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) 2015. Treasure Island and Yerba Buena Island Streetscape 
Master Plan. Chapter D – Yerba Buena Island Streetscape Designs. Approved February 2, 2015. Available 
here: https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/150202-
Treasure%20Island%20Streetscape%20MP%20Final%20for%20ApprovalPg219-Final.pdf. Accessed July 
13, 2020.  

Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) 2019. Congestion Pricing Memorandum- History of 
Congestion Pricing and Development of Treasure Island. May 8, 2019. Available here: 
https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/050819%20Item%207%20-
Congestion%20Pricing%20Workplan%20and%20Outreach%20Approach.pdf. Accessed August 11, 2020. 

 

 

37

http://files.mtc.ca.gov/library/BBC/pdf/ACCNO_000079.PDF
https://sftreasureisland.org/FinalEIR
https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/150202-Treasure%20Island%20Streetscape%20MP%20Final%20for%20ApprovalPg219-Final.pdf
https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/150202-Treasure%20Island%20Streetscape%20MP%20Final%20for%20ApprovalPg219-Final.pdf
https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/050819%20Item%207%20-Congestion%20Pricing%20Workplan%20and%20Outreach%20Approach.pdf
https://sftreasureisland.org/sites/default/files/050819%20Item%207%20-Congestion%20Pricing%20Workplan%20and%20Outreach%20Approach.pdf


16 
 

Appendix A, Figures

38



Regional Location Figure 

 Treasure Island Tolling Project 

01 
Source: Turnstone Consulting 2011; Circlepoint 2020 

39



Toll Location 1 (Macalla Road) Figure 

 Treasure Island Tolling Project 

02 
Source: HNTB 2020; GoogleEarth 2020 

Toll Location 1 
• Gantry spanning 22 feet across 2 lanes
• Retaining Wall ranging from 2 to 25 feet
• Paved tolling station 15 foot wide and 30 foot
long for Toll Gantry Foundation, Roadside
Cabinet, and Vehicle Access

Not to Scale 

40



Toll Location 2 (Macalla Rd) 

 Treasure Island Tolling Project 

Figure 03 
Source: HNTB 2020; GoogleEarth 2020 

Not to Scale 

Toll Location 2 
• Gantry going across 2 lanes
• Retaining Wall ranging from 2 to 25 feet
• Paved tolling station 15 foot wide and 20
foot long for Toll Gantry Foundation and
Roadside Cabinet Install

41



Toll Location 2 Simulation 

 Treasure Island Tolling Project 

Figure 04 
Source: HNTB 2020 

42



Toll Location 3 (Southgate Project) 

 Treasure Island Tolling Project 

Figure 05 
Source: HNTB 2020; GoogleEarth 2020 

43



Toll Location 3 Simulation 

 Treasure Island Tolling Project 

Figure 06 
Source: HNTB 2021 

44



Toll Location 4 (West Side Bridges Project) 

 Treasure Island Tolling Project 

Figure 07 
Source: HNTB 2020; GoogleEarth 2020 

Not to Scale 

Toll Location 4 
• One Gantry with support on both sides
covering 1-lane (on ramps)
• Roadside Cabinet installed on Treasure
Island Road

45



Toll Location 5 (Treasure Island Road) Figure 

 Treasure Island Tolling Project 

08 
Source: HNTB 2020; GoogleEarth 2020 

Not to Scale 

Toll Location 5 
• One Gantry covering a single lane (northbound)
• Roadside Cabinet installed next to the gantry

46



CCTV Location 1 (Macalla Rd) Figure 

 Treasure Island Tolling Project 

09 
Source: HNTB 2020; GoogleEarth 2020 

Not to Scale 

CCTV Location 1 
• Camera Pole 30 feet tall with pole
mounted electronics

47



CCTV Location 2 (Hillcrest Rd) Figure 

 Treasure Island Tolling Project 

10 
Source: HNTB 2020; GoogleEarth 2020 

Not to Scale 

CCTV Location 2 
• Camera Pole 30 feet tall with pole
mounted electronics

48



CCTV Location 3 (Treasure Island Rd) Figure 

 Treasure Island Tolling Project 

11 
Source: HNTB 2020; GoogleEarth 2020 

Not to Scale 

CCTV Location 3 
• Camera Pole 30 feet tall with pole
mounted electronics

49



28 

Appendix B, Treasure Island Transportation Plan Outreach Summary

50



 

29 
 

Goals of Treasure Island Outreach  
No one knows Treasure Island and the needs of its community better than the island’s residents, business 
owners and employees, and non-profit staff and members. Members of the TI community have played a key 
role in informing the TITP through the feedback they’ve provided during the planning process.  The goals of 
outreach to the TI community have been to:  

• Learn about the transportation priorities of those who currently live and work on Treasure Island or 
travel there as non-profit members and service recipients; 

• Inform the existing Treasure Island community about the development of the TITP so community 
members were able to provide meaningful feedback; 

• To co-create solutions to challenges and customize the TITP to fit the needs of people who will be 
served by it; and, 

• Create strong lines of communication with the Treasure Island residents and learn from them how to 
reduce barriers to their participating in the planning process. 

What we learned 
The community members who participated in outreach related to the TITP provided a wealth of insights that 
had direct effects on the development of the plan. Key takeaways include:  

● Overall, Treasure Island community members expressed a sentiment that the future of the island was 
one that would only cater to high-income residents. The design of the toll had the potential to increase 
equity on the island. 

● The 2024 roll out of the toll alongside the 2036 development completion timeline felt off to current 
residents. There was a sense of being asked to pay for a problem that future residents should be 
responsible for. This led to the exemption of current residents from the future toll. 

● Similarly, businesses and non-profits that struggle to hire staff and attract customers to the island 
during development felt that implementing a toll would be a significant challenge. This led to the delay 
of the toll until new transportation services were available. This also allows for development to 
continue so that by the time the toll is implemented there will be a larger on-island patronage. 

● The island’s low-income residents, workers, and visitors were a top priority for the entire community. 
This led to the development of a cash rebate model for businesses and non-profits to defray toll costs 
of employees and members. 

How outreach was conducted 
Connecting with Treasure Island’s diverse community called for a multipronged outreach effort. Since 2016, 
there have been more than 50 opportunities for members of the public to learn about the project and provide 
feedback, including TIDA Board and Community Advisory Committee meetings, multilingual community open 
houses, focus groups with residents and businesses, co-creation workshops, one-on-one conversations with 
business owners and non-profit representatives, and multilingual surveys. Additionally, local news outlets like 
Treasure Island News were used to provide general updates, solicit feedback, share meeting notices, and 
distribute surveys and questionnaires. Outreach opportunities were refined over time to be more accessible 
and useful to participants, including when and where meetings were held, and the type of information shared.  
 
Events and surveys were publicized in partnership with local businesses and community-based organizations 
and with elected officials and other community leaders, with the aim of meeting people where they are. With 
the onset of COVID in 2020, outreach pivoted to online channels with the utmost effort to include those with 
barriers to digital access. Participants in lengthy workshops were paid for their time and expertise. 

 

51



[ this page intentionally left blank ]

52



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 3 

Memorandum  

AGENDA ITEM 5 

DATE: January 6, 2022 

TO:  Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency Committee 

FROM:  Rachel Hiatt – Acting Deputy Director for Planning 

SUBJECT:  01/11/22 Committee Meeting: Treasure Island Mobility Management Program 
Implementation Report 2021 

BACKGROUND 

On April 21, 2011, in a joint session with the San Francisco Planning Commission, the Treasure Island 
Development Authority (TIDA) Board of Directors approved the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island 
Development Project, including a Development Agreement and a Disposition and Development 
Agreement (DDA) with Treasure Island Community Development, as well as the Treasure Island 
Transportation Implementation Plan (TITIP). On June 7, 2011, the Board of Supervisors approved the 
same. 

RECOMMENDATION   ☒ Information  ☐ Action   

None.  This is an Information item. 

SUMMARY 

On June 7, 2011, the Board of Supervisors approved the Treasure Island 
Transportation Implementation Plan (TITIP).   The TITIP calls for a 
comprehensive, integrated program to manage travel demand on 
Treasure Island as it develops, with the ability for adjustments to be made 
as warranted to meet the twin goals of transit mode shares above 50% 
and financial sustainability.  The purpose of TIMMA, as set forth in the 
Treasure Island Transportation Management Act of 2008 (AB981), is to 
implement the TITIP. This 2021 Treasure Island Mobility Management 
Program Implementation Report (PIR) provides updates to the TITIP, 
based on technical analysis and public outreach. The commitments and 
principles of the TITIP, with its vision of Treasure Island as a sustainable 
transit-oriented community, have not changed. However, since the 2011 
adoption of the original TITIP, some policies have advanced while others 
are still in development.  The purpose of this PIR is to document, in a 
single location, the current status of all TITIP policies, at the time that final 
congestion pricing policies are adopted. 

☐ Fund Allocation 

☐ Fund Programming 

☐ Policy/Legislation 

☒ Plan/Study 

☐ Capital Project 

Oversight/Delivery 

☐ Budget/Finance 

☐ Contract/Agreement 

☐ Other: 
__________________ 

53



Agenda Item 5 

Page 2 of 3 

The DDA referenced and outlined the goals, strategies, and implementation plan for a new 
transportation system, infrastructure, and services to support the development Project, including the 
designation of a transportation management agency to oversee the implementation and management 
of the transportation programs and revenues. On April 1, 2014, the San Francisco Board of Supervisors 
approved a resolution designating the Transportation Authority as the Treasure Island Transportation 
Management Agency (TIMMA). The purpose of TIMMA, as set forth in the Treasure Island 
Transportation Management Act of 2008 (State Assembly Bill 981 -Leno), is to implement the TITIP.   

The TITIP calls for a comprehensive, integrated program to manage travel demand on Treasure Island 
as it develops, with the ability for adjustments to be made as warranted to meet the twin goals of 
transit mode shares above 50% and financial sustainability. This innovative approach to mobility 
includes a complementary package of strategies and services including developer subsidy, required 
purchase of transit passes by market-rate residents, parking fees, and a multimodal congestion pricing 
program that applies motorist user fees to support enhanced and new bus, ferry, and shuttle transit, as 
well as bicycle sharing, to reduce the traffic impacts of the project.  The TITIP establishes two 
performance goals for the program, specifically that at least half the residential trips on/off are made 
by transit and the program raise the revenues needed to pay for the planned regional transit service 
levels.  AB 981 authorizes San Francisco to implement congestion pricing (tolling) on Treasure Island 
for these purposes.  The TITIP also allowed for changes in the congestion pricing program to meet 
these goals.  

On July 20, 2016, the TIMMA Board approved the recommendations set forth in the Treasure Island 
Mobility Management Study (Study), a policy and financial analysis of the congestion pricing program.  
The Study refined the assumptions of the TITIP and recommended a subset of toll policies (including 
adjustments to the tolled population and high-occupancy vehicle definition) for the Island based on 
demand forecasting, financial analysis, and stakeholder input. The Study also recommended the 
development of an Affordability Program. 

On November 21, 2018, the TIMMA Committee recommended approval of the Treasure Island Transit 
Pass, Toll Policy, and Affordability Program.  This recommendation encompassed the remaining toll 
policies not adopted in 2016, including toll level, hours of operation, and discounts for current and 
future low-income households.  On December 11, 2018, the TIMMA Board continued the item, 
pending further outreach and analysis of additional policy options. 

On November 19, 2019, the TIMMA Board approved Resolution 20-03, establishing a toll exemption 
for current residents, with implementation details to be proposed and adopted as part of future Toll 
System Business Rules.  Financial analysis indicates that a toll exemption for current residents will 
require additional revenues of up to $3 million per year over a 15 to 20-year program buildout period, 
depending on toll rate level.   Resolution 20-03 allows for a revision of the policy, pending an 
evaluation into its effectiveness, at the midpoint (4,000th unit) of the Development Project.   

On April 27, 2021, the TIMMA Board approved Resolution 21-05, approving the Treasure Island multi-
operator transit pass study final report and adopting the Treasure Island multi-operator transit pass 
design framework. This study recommends that the pass be available at a discounted price for optional 
purchase by residents of below market-rate units and by eligible Treasure Island workers.    

On September 28, 2021, the TIMMA Board approved Resolution 22-01, establishing a toll affordability 
program for current non-profit organization and food-services businesses and their workers.  Financial 
analysis indicates that a toll exemption for current residents will require additional revenues of about 

54



Agenda Item 5 

Page 3 of 3 

$3.5 million over a 5-year initial program period, depending on toll rate level.   Resolution 21-01 allows 
for a revision of the policy, pending an evaluation into its effectiveness, at the midpoint (4,000th unit) 
of the Development Project.   

On November 09, 2021, the TIMMA Committee heard draft recommendations for the Base Toll (for all 
future travelers) and consolidated Affordability Program.  These recommendations encompass the 
remaining toll policies not adopted in 2016 and 2018, including toll level, hours of operation, and 
discounts for future low-income travelers.      

Based on technical analysis and public outreach, this PIR provides updates to the 2011 TITIP. The 
commitments and principles of the Project, with its vision of Treasure Island as a sustainable transit-
oriented community, have not changed. However, since the 2011 adoption of the original TITIP, some 
policies have advanced while others are still in development.  The purpose of the PIR is to document, 
in a single location, the status of all TITIP policies, at the time that final congestion pricing policies are 
adopted. 

DISCUSSION 

The updates documented in this PIR are based on technical analysis, TIMMA Board guidance and 
public outreach, including:  

• 2016 TIMMA adoption of initial toll policies that revise the initial operating assumptions made 
in the 2011 TITIP, based on demand and financial analysis; 

• 2019 TIMMA adoption of current resident toll exemption; 

• 2021 TIMMA adoption of multi-operator Transit Pass with discounts; 

• 2021 TIMMA adoption of current business and worker toll subsidies; and 

• Recommended Base Toll and Discount policies, including an affordability program for future 
low-income travelers. 

The refinements described in this PIR were considered for supplemental environmental review under 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). TIMMA prepared a CEQA Addendum to evaluate the 
physical effects of the Project updates on the environment, including transportation effects. The CEQA 
Addendum was published by TIMMA in January 2022. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None.  This is an Information Item. 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 

Enclosure 1 – Treasure Island Mobility Management Program Implementation Report 2021 

55



[ this page intentionally left blank ]

56



 

Memorandum 

AGENDA ITEM 6 

DATE:  December 27, 2021 

TO:  Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency Board 

From: Cynthia Fong – Deputy Director for Finance and Administration 

Subject: 1/11/2022 Board Meeting: Recommend Acceptance of the Audit Report for the 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

BACKGROUND   

Under its Fiscal Policy (Resolution 21-01), TIMMA’s financial records are to be audited 
annually by an independent, certified public accounting firm. The audits for the fiscal year 
(FY) ended June 30, 2021, were conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). The Audit Report contains formal opinions, or disclaimers thereof, issued by an 
independent, certified public accounting firm as a result of an external audit performed on 
the agency. An unmodified opinion (also known as a clean opinion/unqualified opinion) is 
the best type of report an agency may receive from an external audit and represents that the 
agency complied with direct and material regulatory requirements or that the agency’s 
financial condition, position, and operations in all material respects were fairly presented. 

RECOMMENDATION ☒ Information ☒ Action 

Recommend Acceptance of the audit report for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2021 

SUMMARY 

The Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency’s (TIMMA’s) 
financial records are required to be audited annually by an 
independent, certified public accountant. The Annual 
Financial Report (Audit Report) for the year ended June 30, 
2021, was conducted in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards by the independent, certified public 
accounting firm of Eide Bailly LLP.  We received all unmodified 
audit opinions from Eide Bailly, with no findings or 
recommendations for improvements. 

☐ Fund Allocation 

☐ Fund Programming 

☐ Policy/Legislation 

☐ Plan/Study 

☐ Capital Project 
Oversight/Delivery 

☒ Budget/Finance 

☐ Contract/Agreement 

☐ Other: 
___________________ 

57



 Page 2 of 2 

  

DISCUSSION  

The Audit Report includes an Independent Auditor’s Report; a management discussion and 
analysis of the TIMMA financial performance during that fiscal year; the financial statements; 
and the required supplemental information. 

We are pleased to note that Eide Bailly issued all unmodified opinions and had no findings 
or recommendations for improvements. We recognized all significant transactions in the 
financial statements in the proper period and received no adjustments to any estimates 
made in the financial statements. For the annual fiscal audit, Eide Bailly has issued an opinion 
stating that the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of TIMMA. The full audit report is enclosed. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT   

Expenditures did not exceed the amounts approved in the final amended FY2020/21 
budget. Budgeted expenditures in the amount of $787,734 were not expended in 
FY2020/21 and will be included in the FY2021/22 mid-year amendment. 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 

Attachment 1 – Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

58



 

 
59



 
 

60



 

 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Table of Contents 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report ....................................................................................................................... 1 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis ....................................................................................................... 3 

Government Wide Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position ......................................................................................................................... 10 
Statement of Activities ............................................................................................................................... 11 

Government Fund Financial Statements 

Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ..................................................................................................... 12 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds ..... 13 

Notes to Financial Statements ...................................................................................................................... 14 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual ........... 17 
Note to Required Supplementary Information ....................................................................................... 18 
 

61



What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com

4040 Campbell Ave., Ste. 200  |  Menlo Park, CA 94025-1053  |  T 650.522.3400  |  F 650.645.7393  |  EOE

1 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Commissioners 
Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
San Francisco, California 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the general 
fund of the Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency (Agency), a component unit of the San 
Francisco County Transportation Authority (Transportation Authority), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities and the general fund of the Agency as of June 
30, 2021, and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

62



2 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management 
discussion and analysis and the budgetary comparison schedule be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Menlo Park, California 
December 21, 2021 

63



3 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2021 

As management of the Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency (Agency), we offer readers of 
the financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Agency 
for the fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 2021. 

Financial Highlights 

• Net Position – The assets exceeded its liabilities by $1.1 million (net position) at FY ended
June 30, 2021. All of which is considered unrestricted net position and may be used to meet
the Agency’s ongoing obligations.

• Total Assets - Total assets increased by $606 thousand, which is mainly due to an increase in
receivable from the City and County of San Francisco.

• Total Liabilities – Total liabilities increased by $703 thousand, which is mainly due to an
increase in payable to the San Francisco County Transportation Authority (Transportation
Authority) for costs incurred and paid for by the Agency.

• Operating Grants and Contributions Revenues – Total operating grants and contributions
increased by $240 thousand. This is mainly due to reimbursements from the Treasure Island
Development Authority (TIDA) for FY2019/20 activities but collected in FY2020/21.

• Transportation Improvement Expenses - Total transportation improvement expenses
increased by $219 thousand in FY2020/21 as compared to the prior year, which is mainly due
to increased level of effort and activities in preparation for operations as we progress toward
the launch of a tolling system.

• Total revenues and expenditures were less than the final budgetary estimates by $697
thousand as work across all subprojects of the Agency program proceeded more slowly than
anticipated. We anticipate toll policies to be adopted by January 2022 in which toll system
design and integration work will proceed thereafter.

• Fund Balance – The Agency’s sole governmental fund, the general fund, reported no fund
balances, which is consistent with the prior year.

64



4 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2021 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the Agency’s 
basic financial statements. The Agency’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) the notes to financial 
statements. This report also includes required supplementary information intended to furnish 
additional detail to support the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
the Agency’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents financial information on all of the Agency’s assets, liabilities 
with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may 
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Agency is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Agency’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues 
and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

The governmental activities of the Agency includes transportation improvement as the only activity. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 10-11 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Agency, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

65



5 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2021 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in assessing a government’s 
near-term financing requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of 
the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for 
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and 
governmental activities. 

The Agency maintains one governmental fund which is the general fund and adopts an annual 
appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison has been provided for the 
general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial 
statements can be found on pages 14-16 of this report. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
required supplementary information concerning the Agency’s general fund budget. 

Required supplementary information can be found on pages 17-18 of this report. 

66



6 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2021 

Government-Wide Overall Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. The Agency’s statement of net position shows assets exceeded its liabilities by $1.1 million 
at year ended June 30, 2021. 

June 30, 
2021

June 30, 
2020

$ 
Change

% 
Change

ASSETS
Program receivables 4,179$          431,417$      (427,238)$    -99.0%

 Receivable from the City and County
  of San Francisco 2,258,832     1,225,227     1,033,605     84.4%

Total Assets 2,263,011     1,656,644     606,367        36.6%

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 138,701        304,806 (166,105)       -54.5%

 Payable to San Francisco County
  Transportation Authority 1,026,286     156,794 869,492        554.5%

Total Liabilities 1,164,987     461,600 703,387        152.4%

NET POSITION
Unrestricted net position 1,098,024     1,195,044     (97,020)         -8.1%

Total Net Position 1,098,024$  1,195,044$   (97,020)$       -8.1%

For the Year Ended

The Agency reported an unrestricted net position of $1.1 million, a decrease of $97 thousand due to 
increased payable liabilities as compared to prior year. Total assets increased by $606 thousand 
which consists of program receivables from the Federal Advanced Transportation and Congestion 
Management Technologies Deployment grant and program receivables from the City and County of 
San Francisco. The increase in receivable from the City and County of San Francisco is related to the 
timing of invoices submitted to funding agencies and whose payments were not collected as of June 
30, 2021. Total liabilities increased by $703 thousand which consists of accounts payable and 
payable to the Transportation Authority. Payable of $1 million to the Transportation Authority was for 
costs incurred by the Agency, but paid by the Transportation Authority on behalf of the Agency. The 
Agency will reimburse the Transportation Authority with grant payments received. 

67



7 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2021 

Governmental Activities 

The Agency’s net position for governmental activities decreased $97 thousand for the year ended 
June 30, 2021, with an ending balance of $1.1 million. 

For the Year Ended
June 30, June 30, 

2021 2020 $ Change % Change
Revenues:

Operating grants and contributions 1,439,114$           1,198,712$      240,402$         20.1%
Total revenues 1,439,114             1,198,712 240,402           20.1%
Expenses:  

Transportation improvement 1,536,134             1,317,432 218,702           16.6%
Total expenses 1,536,134             1,317,432 218,702           16.6%

Change in net position (97,020) (118,720)           21,700             -18.3%
Net position, beginning of year 1,195,044             1,313,764 (118,720)          -9.0%
Net position, end of year 1,098,024$           1,195,044$      (97,020)$          -8.1%

Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, the Agency uses fund accounting to report its governmental transactions. The focus 
of the Agency’s governmental fund is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Agency’s financing 
requirements. Operating grants and contributions increased by $240 thousand. This is mainly due to 
reimbursements from TIDA for FY2019/20 activities but collected in FY2020/21. Transportation 
improvement expenses increased by $219 thousand as compared to the prior year. This is mainly 
because as we progress toward the launch of a tolling system, level of effort and activities increases 
year-to-year in preparation for operations. Some of the milestones reached this fiscal year were the 
adoption of the Worker Affordability Program; completion of the California Environmental Quality 
Act technical studies; and the completion of 65% civil design for Toll Points 1 through 3. 

68



8 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2021 

Budgetary Analysis and Highlights and Economic Factors 

The most significant differences between budgeted revenues and expenditures and actual revenues 
and expenditures were as follows: 

Positive
(Negative) 

Variance
Final 

Original Final Actual to Actual 
Revenues and Transfers In 

Federal 989,626$       733,421$       232,236$       (501,185)$         
Regional and other 1,500,000      1,500,000      1,303,898      (196,102)            

Transfers in from other funds 7,435              - - - 

Total Revenues and Transfers In 2,497,061      2,233,421      1,536,134      (697,287)            

Expenditures and Transfers Out 
Administrative operating costs 568,413         573,121         609,111         (35,990) 
Transportation improvement 1,928,648      1,660,300      836,576         823,724             
Transfers out to other funds - - 90,447 (90,447) 

 Total Expenditures and
  Transfers Out 2,497,061      2,233,421      1,536,134      697,287             

Change in Fund Balance - - - - 
Fund Balance - Beginning - - - - 
Fund Balance - Ending -$ -$ -$ -$  

Budgeted Amounts 

Total revenues were less than the final budgetary estimates by $697 thousand. Similarly, total 
expenditures were less than budgetary estimates by $697 thousand. Work across all subprojects of 
the Agency program proceeded more slowly than anticipated. We anticipate toll policies to be 
adopted by January 2022. Toll system design and integration work will proceed when toll policies 
are adopted. Administrative operating costs were more than budgetary estimates by $36 thousand. 
Transfers out to other funds was $90 thousand more than budgetary estimates, due to Agency 
reimbursements to the Transportation Authority for prior year grant payments collected during 
FY2020/21. 

69



9 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2021 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Agency’s finances for all those 
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided 
in this report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to: 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Attention: Deputy Director for Finance and Administration 
1455 Market Street, 22nd Floor 
San Francisco, California, 94103 

70



See Notes to Financial Statements 10 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2021 

ASSETS
Program receivables 4,179$             
Receivable from the City and County of San Francisco 2,258,832        

Total Assets 2,263,011        

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 138,701           
Payable to San Francisco County Transportation Authority 1,026,286        

Total Liabilities 1,164,987        

NET POSITION
Unrestricted net position 1,098,024        

Total Net Position 1,098,024$     

71



See Notes to Financial Statements 11 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

EXPENSES
Transportation improvement 1,536,134$      

PROGRAM REVENUES
Operating grants and contributions 1,439,114 

Net program revenue (expense) (97,020)             

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (97,020)             
Net position, beginning of year 1,195,044 
Net position, end of year 1,098,024$      

72



See Notes to Financial Statements 12 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2021 

General
Fund

ASSETS
Program receivables

Regional and other 4,179$  
 Receivables from the City & County of San Francisco 2,258,832 

Total Assets 2,263,011$  

 LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
  OF RESOURCES,  AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities

Accounts payable 138,701$  
 Payable to San Francisco County Transportation Authority 1,026,286 
Total liabilities 1,164,987 
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable revenues 1,098,024 
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,098,024 
Fund Balances

Unassigned - 
Total Fund Balances - 

 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
  of Resources, and Fund Balances 2,263,011$  

Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to
  the Statement of Net Position
Amounts reported for governmental activities in
  the statement of net position are different because:

Long-term receivables are not available to pay for current period indent 
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental fund 1,098,024$  

Net position of governmental activities 1,098,024$  

73



See Notes to Financial Statements 13 

San Francisco County Transportation Authority 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

General
Fund

REVENUES
Program revenues

Federal 232,236$  
Regional and other 1,303,898 

Total Revenues 1,536,134 

EXPENDITURES
Current - transportation improvement

Personnel expenditures 543,811 
Non-personnel expenditures 65,300 
Capital project costs 836,576 

Total Expenditures 1,445,687 

 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 90,447 

 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out (90,447) 

 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (90,447) 

 Net Change in Fund Balance - 
 Fund Balances - Beginning - 
 Fund Balances - Ending -$  

Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of 
Amounts reported for governmental funds in the
  statement of activities are different because of the following:

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
  provide current financial resources are not reported
  in the governmental funds statements:

Change in deferred inflows related to unavailable revenues (97,020)$  
Change in net position of governmental activities (97,020)$  

74



14 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

Note 1 -  Reporting Entity and Background 

The Treasure Island Transportation Management Act of 2008 Assembly Bill 981 (Leno 2008) 
authorizes the creation or designation of a Treasure Island-specific transportation management 
agency. On April 1, 2014, the City and County of San Francisco Board of Supervisors approved a 
resolution designating the San Francisco County Transportation Authority (Transportation Authority) 
as the Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency (Agency) to implement the Treasure Island 
Transportation Implementation Plan in support of the Treasure Island/Yerba Buena Island 
Development Project. In September 2014, Governor Brown signed Assembly Bill 141 (Ammiano 
2014), establishing the Agency as a legal entity, distinct from the Transportation Authority, to help 
firewall the Transportation Authority’s other functions. The eleven members of the Transportation 
Authority Board act as the Agency’s Board of Commissioners. 

Pursuant to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) standards, the financial statements 
of the Agency are included in the Transportation Authority’s basic financial statements using the 
blending method. Nonetheless, the Agency is governed by an administrative code separate from 
that of the Transportation Authority’s, and the agency operates as a special-purpose government 
agency under state law, separate and distinct from the Transportation Authority. The ordinance that 
created the Agency empowers it to independently issue debt in order to finance transportation 
projects for the Agency. The Agency’s borrowing capacity is separate and distinct from that of the 
Transportation Authority. 

The Treasure Island Transportation Implementation Plan (TITIP), adopted in 2011, calls for a 
comprehensive, integrated program to manage travel demand on Treasure Island as it develops. 
This innovative approach to mobility includes a complementary package of strategies and services 
including required purchase of transit passes by residents, parking fees, and a multimodal 
congestion pricing program that applies motorist user fees to support enhanced and new bus, ferry, 
and shuttle transit, as well as bicycle sharing, to reduce the traffic impacts of the project. Assembly 
Bill 981 (Leno 2008) authorizes San Francisco to implement congestion pricing (tolling) on Treasure 
Island. 

The Agency’s goals for TITIP include the following: 

Promote walking and biking: Bike lanes, pedestrian paths, and Bay Wheels stations are to be set 
up to make walking and biking around the island safe and enjoyable. 

Provide high-quality transit: This includes providing more San Francisco Municipal Transportation 
Agency services, new AC Transit services, ferry services, and on-island shuttles, to ensure that at 
least 50% of trips to and from the island are made using sustainable methods. 

Reduce the need for car-ownership and use: This will be done by implementing a toll to enter and 
exit the island, not including parking with housing, and implementing a car sharing service. 

Promote affordability: Subsidize transit passes, provide discounts to services like car and bike share 
for longtime residents and below market rate housing residents.

75



15 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

Note 2 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Financial Statements – The statement of net position and statement of activities 
display information about the Agency. These statements include the financial activities of the overall 
government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. 
Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes, grants, and other revenues.  

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, 
are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include: 1) charges paid by the 
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that 
are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented instead as general 
revenues. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement 
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured, 
such as current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the 
timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements. The government-wide 
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been 
met.  

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible, within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all 
eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the amount is received during 
the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end). 
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been 
incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received during the 
period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end). All other 
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the 
Agency.  

76



16 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

Fund Balance / Net Position 

The net position reported on the statement of net position is unrestricted, while the Agency 
reported no fund balance on June 30, 2021.  When an expenditure / expense is incurred for 
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position / unassigned fund balance is 
available, the Agency considers restricted funds to have been spent first.  

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of basic financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP), requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect 
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those 
estimates. 

Note 3 -  Related Party Transactions 

City and County of San Francisco 
Receivables from the City and the County of San Francisco totaled $2,258,832 at June 30, 2021. 
These amounts are due to the Agency for project billings related to the TITIP.  

San Francisco County Transportation Authority  
Payables to the Transportation Authority are comprised of $1,026,286. These amounts were for the 
costs incurred by the Agency, but paid by the Transportation Authority on behalf of the Agency. 
Additionally, the Agency transferred $90,447 to the Transportation Authority.  

Note 4 -  Commitments 

The Agency’s outstanding commitments totaled $1,062,998 at June 30, 2021.  This amount 
represents outstanding encumbrances on various Agency contracts held with private consulting 
companies. 

77



eidebailly.com

 

 

Required Supplementary Information 
June 30, 2021 

Treasure Island Mobility 
Management Agency 

78



 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information 17 

Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 

Positive
(Negative) 

Variance
Final 

Original Final Actual to Actual 
Revenues and Transfers In 

Federal 989,626$       733,421$       232,236$       (501,185)$         
Regional and other 1,500,000      1,500,000      1,303,898      (196,102)            

Transfers in from other funds 7,435              -                       -                       -                          

Total Revenues and Transfers In 2,497,061      2,233,421      1,536,134      (697,287)            

Expenditures and Transfers Out 
Administrative operating costs 568,413         573,121         609,111         (35,990)              
Transportation improvement 1,928,648      1,660,300      836,576         823,724             
Transfers out to other funds -                       -                       90,447           (90,447)              

 Total Expenditures and
  Transfers Out 2,497,061      2,233,421      1,536,134      697,287             

Change in Fund Balance -                       -                       -                       -                          
Fund Balance - Beginning -                       -                       -                       -                          
Fund Balance - Ending -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                        

Budgeted Amounts 

79



 

 18 

San Francisco County Transportation Authority 
Note to Required Supplementary Information 

June 30, 2021 
 
 
Note 1 -  Budgets and Budgetary Data 
 
Comparisons with financial results for the current fiscal period for the fund are presented as required 
supplementary information and include, in addition to actual expenditures, amounts that have been 
appropriated for projects and programs. Unexpended capital budget appropriations are carried 
forward to subsequent years. The budget represents a process through which policy decisions are 
made, implemented, and controlled. Appropriations may be adjusted during the year with the 
approval of the governing board. Accordingly, the legal level of budgetary control by the Agency is 
the program (fund) level. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 
 
 
 

80



 

 

 

81



[ this page intentionally left blank ]

82



 

Memorandum 

AGENDA ITEM 7 

DATE:  November 30, 2021 

TO:  Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency Committee  

FROM: Cynthia Fong – Deputy Director for Finance and Administration 

SUBJECT:  1/11/22 Committee Meeting: Internal Accounting Report for the Three Months 
Ending September 30, 2021 

BACKGROUND   

The TIMMA’s Fiscal Policy (Resolution 21-01) establishes an annual audit requirement and 
directs staff to report to the TIMMA Committee, on at least a quarterly basis, its actual 
expenditures in comparison to the adopted budget. 

DISCUSSION  

Internal Accounting Report. Using the format of TIMMA’s annual financial statements for 
governmental funds, the Internal Accounting Report includes a Balance Sheet (Attachment 1) 
and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, with Budget 
Comparison (Attachment 2). In Attachment 2, the last two columns show, respectively, the 
budget values, and the variance of revenues and expenditures as compared to the prorated 
adopted budget. For the three months ending September 30, 2021, the numbers in the 
prorated adopted budget column are one-fourth of the total adopted budget for Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2021/22. The Internal Accounting Report does not include the Governmental 

RECOMMENDATION ☒ Information ☐ Action 

None. This is an information item. 

SUMMARY 

The Treasure Island Mobility Management Agency’s (TIMMA’s) 
Fiscal Policy directs staff to give a quarterly report of 
expenditures including a comparison to the adopted budget.  

☐ Fund Allocation 

☐ Fund Programming 

☐ Policy/Legislation 

☐ Plan/Study 

☐ Capital Project 
Oversight/Delivery 

☒ Budget/Finance 

☐ Contract/Agreement 

☐ Other: 
___________________ 

83



 Page 2 of 2 

  

Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 adjustments, or the other accruals, that are 
done at year-end. The statements as of September 30, 2021, are used as the basis for 
understanding financial status for TIMMA at the quarter ending September 30, 2021. 

Balance Sheet Analysis. The Balance Sheet (Attachment 1) presents assets, liabilities, and 
fund balances as of September 30, 2021. Total assets of $1.4 million are related to program 
receivable from federal and regional grants. Total liability of $271,342 included $97,102 of 
payable to consultants for services provided, and $174,240 of payable to the Transportation 
Authority for costs incurred and paid for by TIMMA. TIMMA will reimburse the Transportation 
Authority with grant payments received. The deferred inflow of resources is $1.1 million, and 
it is related to the timing of invoices submitted to funding agencies for reimbursement that 
were not collected as of September 30, 2021. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances Analysis. The 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances with Budget 
Comparison (Attachment 2) compares the adopted budget to actual levels for revenues and 
earned $271,341 of revenues from the Treasure Island Development Authority and the 
Federal Advanced Transportation and Congestion Management Technologies Deployment 
grant in the first quarter. As of September 30, 2021, TIMMA incurred $275,720 of 
expenditures. Expenditures included $188,235 in technical professional services and 
$87,485 of personnel and non-personnel expenditures. 

For the three months ending September 30, 2021, total program revenues were lower than 
prorated budgetary estimates by $392,717 and total expenditures were lower than prorated 
budgetary estimates by $438,201. The variances are mainly due to the delay in policy 
approvals. We are expecting to seek Board approval of the base toll and discount policy in 
January 2022, and further work will continue once these are adopted. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT   

None. This is an information item. 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 

 Attachment 1 – Balance Sheet (unaudited) 

 Attachment 2 – Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance with 
Budget Comparison (unaudited) 

84



General Fund

Assets:   
Program receivable 132,916$                 

Receivables from the City and County of San Francisco  1,236,450                 
Total Assets  1,369,366                

  
Liabilities:   

Accounts payable  97,102                       
Due to Transportation Authority  174,240                     

Total Liabilities  271,342                   
  

Deferred Inflows of Resources:   
  Unavailable program revenues  1,098,024                

  
Fund Balances (Deficit):   
    Total fund balances (deficit)  -                            

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Balances  1,369,366$              

TREASURE ISLAND MOBILITY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
ATTACHMENT 1

Balance Sheet (unaudited)
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2021

85



Variance with
Prorated Prorated

Adopted Budget Adopted Budget
Fiscal Year Positive

General Fund 2021/22 (Negative)

Revenues:   

Program revenues 271,341$            664,058$            (392,717)$           

Total Revenues  271,341               664,058              (392,717)             

  

Expenditures:   

Current - transportation improvement

     Personnel expenditures  188,235               252,130              63,895                 

     Non-personnel expenditures  486                       14,050                 13,564                 

     Capital project costs  86,999                  447,741              360,742              

Total Expenditures  275,720               713,921              438,201              

  
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over
   (Under) Expenditures  (4,379)$                (49,863)$             45,484$              

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer in from Transportation Authority 4,379                   49,863                 (45,484)               

  

Net Change in Fund Balance  -$                      -$                     -$                     

  

Fund balances (deficit), beginning of the period  -                         
Fund Balance (Deficit), End of the Period  -$                      

For the Three Months Ending September 30, 2021

TREASURE ISLAND MOBILITY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
ATTACHMENT 2

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances with Budget Comparison (unaudited)

86


	CANCELLATION NOTICE
	Agenda
	Item 2 - Teleconference Resolution
	Item 3 - Minutes
	Item 4 - Base Toll and Affordability Program
	Item 5 - Program Implementation Report
	Item 6 - Audit Report
	Item 7 - Internal Accounting Report



